NORTH JERSEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AUTHORITY, INC.
ANGEL G. ESTRADA, CHAIRMAN

Board Meeting Agenda
November 19, 2018
10:00 AM

NITPA Office
One Newark Center, 17th floor
Newark, NJ 07102

A. Open Public Meetings Act Compliance
B. Salute to the Flag
C. Roll Call

D. Approval of Minutes

E. Chairman’s Remarks
F. Executive Director’s Report
G. Committee Reports/Action Items*

e Project Prioritization — Freeholder Kathy DeFillippo, Chair
1. Approval of Revisions to Four Projects for the FY 2018-2021 Transportation
Improvement Program as Requested by Port Authority of New York & New Jersey

to Utilize Disaster Recovery and Resilience Program Funding (Attachments G.1.a.,
G.1.b.)

e Planning and Economic Development — Freeholder John Bartlett, Chair
2. Approval of the NJTPA Public Engagement Plan (Attachments G.2.a., G.2.b., G.2.c.)
3. Support for 2019 Safety Performance Measure Targets Set by the New Jersey

Department of Transportation in Collaboration with the NJTPA and Other
Metropolitan Planning Organizations in New Jersey (Attachments G.3.a., G.3.b.)

Following the Committee Reports, there will be an opportunity for public comment prior to any Action Item vote.



e Freight Initiatives — Freeholder Charles Kenny, Chair

H. Key Discussion Issue: 2020 Census Updates — Linda Berk, Partnership Coordinator,
U.S. Census Bureau

L. Public Participation

J. Time and Place of Next Meeting: The next meeting of the NJTPA will be held on
January 14, 2019, 10:00 a.m. at the NJTPA, One Newark Center (1085 Raymond
Blvd.), 17" Floor, Newark, NJ 07102.

K. Adjournment



Defining the Vision. Shaping the Future. One Newark Center, 17th floor, Newark, NJ 07102
(973) 639-8400 « fax (973) 639-1953 « www.njtpa.org

—— NJ I I l \ Angel G. Estrada, Chair

)

Mary D. Ameen, Acting Executive Director

NORTH JERSEY
TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING AUTHORITY

ANGEL G. ESTRADA, CHAIR
Board Meeting Minutes

September 10, 2018

A. Open Public Meetings Act Compliance

Chairman Angel Estrada, Freeholder, Union County called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.
Beverly Morris reported that, in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 231,
P.L.1975, adequate notice of this meeting had been forwarded to the Star Ledger, the Asbury
Park Press, the Courier News, the Daily Record, the Home News Tribune, the Jersey Journal,
New Jersey Herald, and The Record. It was posted in the Essex County Hall of Records,
Newark, New Jersey, and on the bulletin board of the Lieutenant Governor, Trenton, New

Jersey.
B. Salute to the Flag

Chairman Estrada led the Board of Trustees in the Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Roll Call

Following the salute to the flag, Beverly Morris called the roll. Sixteen voting members were
present. Two more arrived after approval of the minutes. (Attachment 1).

D. Approval of Minutes

A motion to approve the minutes of the July 9, 2018 meeting was made by Morris County,
seconded by Passaic County and carried with 15 affirmative votes. The Governor’s Authorities

Unit abstained.
E. Chairman’s Remarks

Chairman Estrada said the Hudson River Rail Tunnels and the larger Gateway Program are the
region’s highest priority transportation investment because many New Jersey residents commute
by train to New York City daily and because the region’s economic future is limited by the
constraints of getting across the Hudson. He said while progress has been made, much depends
on a full federal commitment to funding support. The Federal Transit Administration recently
gave NJ TRANSIT a six-month extension to provide additional information as it seeks funding
from the New Starts grant program for the Portal Bridge replacement project, which is a critical

The Metropolitan Planning Organization for Northern New Jersey



part of the Gateway project. The Chairman thanked the State for its strong financial commitment
to the Portal Bridge in the form of $600 million in bonding. He noted that the New York
Metropolitan Transportation Council (NYMTC) recently amended its fiscally constrained long-
range transportation plan to include the Hudson River Tunnel Project and related work near Penn
Station in New York. The NJTPA’s plan also includes the project and related work in New
Jersey.

The Chairman said that another mega-infrastructure project with region-wide impact on trans-
Hudson travel is NJDOT’s work to rehabilitate the Route 495 Viaduct connecting the New
Jersey Turnpike to the Lincoln Tunnel. The project is expected to increase the bridge’s lifespan
by 75 years. He said that the work is vitally important but requires lane closures and ramp
detours and is disrupting the trips of many thousands of travelers each day. The Chairman
encouraged commuters who are affected by this project to consider carpooling during the
construction, which is expected to conclude in 2020. More information can be found on the
NJRideshare.com website, and traffic updates are available at 511nj.org and via NJDOT’s social
media channels.

Chairman Estrada reported that the NJTPA in partnership with Sustainable Jersey and the
Voorhees Transportation Center at Rutgers selected nine municipalities for the Complete Streets
Technical Assistance Program: Cranford and Westfield in Union County, Leonia and Glen Rock
in Bergen County; Milltown in Middlesex County; Eatontown and Red Bank in Monmouth
County; Parsippany-Troy Hills in Morris County; and Bernardsville in Somerset County. The
competitive program offers free technical assistance worth up to $10,000. Sustainable Jersey and
the Voorhees Center will provide the assistance funded through the NJTPA. The projects range
from walkability workshops, to a bicycle network audit and low-cost temporary changes, called
tactical urbanism or “lighter-quicker-cheaper,” to demonstrate what Complete Streets projects
could look like in the community. The program partners have conducted three well-attended
workshops for municipalities on implementing Complete Streets at the local level.

The Chairman said the NJTPA recently completed the Morris Canal Greenway Corridor Study,
which presents a vision for a 111-mile greenway that connects six counties from the Delaware
Water Gap in Warren County to the Hudson River in Jersey City. The report is available on the
NJTPA’s website. The trail will provide visitors with an opportunity to enjoy the outdoors and
learn about the important role the canal played in the State’s history. As it expands, the greenway
will serve as a regional destination, attracting tourists and helping boost local economies. He
encouraged all subregions along the greenway to consider if there are projects that they could
help move forward in their areas. The Chairman noted that, as part of the study, the NJTPA
conducted specialized outreach with limited English speakers, to gather input from local
residents who are often underrepresented at traditional public meetings. This is something the
NJTPA is striving to do in all of its public engagement work.



F. Executive Director’s Report

NJTPA Acting Executive Director, Mary D. Ameen reported that the NJTPA, U.S. Department
of Transportation and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency hosted the two-day Northern Air
Quality and Transportation Summit in August. The summit brought over 100 experts and
officials from throughout the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic states. Attendees heard about
innovative efforts to improve air quality, and the NJTPA highlighted its own work to improve
North Jersey’s air quality.

Ms. Ameen said that, also in August, the NJTPA, the New Jersey Innovation Institute at NJIT
and the Greater New York Chapter of WTS sponsored an Innovation Summit on emerging
technologies, which saw an overflow crowd on the NJIT campus. The event included tech
companies showing their apps and other innovations that are changing the future of
transportation and planning. Ms. Ameen noted that NJDOT Commissioner Diane Gutierrez-
Scaccetti opened the event and expressed her passion and commitment to making the most of
new technologies. A video of her remarks is posted on the NJTPA homepage.

Ms. Ameen said the Commissioner has continued the positive working relationship between
NJDOT and the NJTPA. One example of this cooperation is the quarterly collaboration meeting
involving staff from various NJDOT departments, along with representatives from the state’s
three Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs), the Federal Highway Administration
(FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). Ms. Ameen said these meetings are a
valuable interagency forum, enabling the NJTPA to share concerns and coordinate its programs
with NJDOT and others. Ms. Ameen reported that, at the August collaboration meeting, NJTPA
staff presented its work with municipalities to develop Alternative Fuel Vehicle readiness plans.

Ms. Ameen reported that the Street Smart pedestrian safety campaigns program completed
another successful summer at the shore. A kickoff event was held in Beach Haven on Long
Beach Island in July. Many other shore towns conducted summer campaigns, including Harvey
Cedars, Surf City and Long Beach Township on LBI, as well as Atlantic Highlands, Bay Head,
Bradley Beach, Long Branch, Manasquan, Point Pleasant Beach, Sea Bright, Toms River and
Union Beach.

Ms. Ameen said that, also in July, staff spoke at a Together North Jersey Pedestrian Safety
Workshop at NJTPA. Topics included the state’s Towards Zero Deaths initiative, which
complements the Street Smart campaign. She said staff will be looking at other ways to integrate
this initiative into their efforts as they work with a consultant to update the Street Smart
messaging and branding. Another consultant is helping to evaluate the effectiveness of the
campaigns through before-and-after surveys and on-street observations.

Ms. Ameen said a campaign began in Asbury Park the previous week, and she thanked
Monmouth County Freeholder Director (and NJTPA Board Member) Thomas Arnone for
participating in that event. She said Bergen County Executive Jim Tedesco will help to kick off
Garfield’s campaign later in September. In addition, the NJTPA recently worked with officers
from the Essex County Sheriff’s Department on spot enforcement of traffic and pedestrian laws
in downtown Newark and will be working with City of Newark’s Police Department on a



campaign this fall. A campaign with Rutherford is planned, and the NJTPA continues to work
with its TMA partners, who are planning back-to-school campaigns in Morris Plains, Princeton
and Bordentown. Ms. Ameen said more than 80 communities have participated in the still
growing Street Smart program. To get more information or get other communities involved, visit
the BeStreetSmartNJ.org website.

Ms. Ameen reported that new proposals for assistance through the Planning for Emerging
Centers program are being reviewed, and awards will be announced this fall. The program
provides technical assistance to municipalities to create more sustainable, transit-supportive and
walkable communities. Staff is also reviewing proposals for the Subregional Studies program,
which supports many vital planning efforts around the region. Two studies began this summer:
Jersey City is developing a Parking Management Plan, while Passaic and Essex counties are
conducting a joint study of the Paterson-to-Newark Transit Market.

Ms. Ameen spoke of the upcoming federal certification review of the NJTPA planning process.
Every four years, the federal funding partners, FHWA and FTA, conduct an on-site review to
certify that the agency is meeting all federal metropolitan planning requirements. The NJTPA
must be fully certified to continue serving the region as an MPO and to draw down federal funds.
Ms. Ameen said the review will take place November 13-15. The review will consist mostly of
staff presentations demonstrating that NJTPA meets both the letter and spirit of federal
regulations and has addressed recommendations from the previous certification. Ms. Ameen said
some members of the NJTPA Board will be asked to participate. The public and interested
organizations will also have an opportunity to offer input. A Federal Certification Review Public
Listening Session will be held at NJTPA on November 14,4 — 7 p.m.

G. Committee Reports/Action Items
Planning and Economic Development — Freeholder John W. Bartlett, Chair

Freeholder Bartlett said the said the NJTPA continues to work with NJDOT and other planning
partners to meet national requirements for performance-based planning and programming as
required by federal law and administered by FHWA. The committee considered two action items
at the August 20 joint committee meeting, both of which dealt with performance-based planning.
First, the committee recommended Board approval of a resolution supporting the pavement,
bridge, travel time reliability and freight performance measure targets set by NJDOT. The
NJTPA is working with NJDOT to measure current conditions on this region’s portion of the
National Highway System.

Freeholder Bartlett said the committee also recommended approval of the CMAQ emissions
reduction performance measure targets for the NJTPA region. Federal rules on performance
management require that MPOs and state departments of transportation coordinate to set
performance targets for emissions reduction within air quality nonattainment and maintenance
areas. The NJTPA region has been designated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency as a
nonattainment area for ozone, and portions of the region are maintenance areas for carbon
monoxide and fine particulate matter. The NJTPA worked with NJDOT and the state’s other



MPOs to analyze trends and develop appropriate statewide and regional targets for achieving
emissions reductions from CMAQ-funded projects.

Freeholder Bartlett noted that performance measures help to highlight important transportation
issues facing the region, but national performance measures do not tell the NJTPA region’s
complete story. Therefore, the NJTPA is conducting a separate project that will help to establish
supplemental performance measures for the region and will also consider performance measure
constraints and funding availability in order to set priorities and explore reachable targets.

Freeholder Bartlett reported that, also at the August meeting, the Committee heard a presentation
on the NJTPA’s Planning for Emerging Centers program. In 2014 the program completed its first
two projects in Morristown, in Morris County, and Bound Brook, in Somerset County. The next
three participating municipalities have recently completed their studies and issued their vision
plans. The Town of Boonton, in Morris County, focused on achieving Transit Village
designation for the area around the Boonton train Station. In Monmouth County, the Borough of
Freehold explored options for creating a Transit-Oriented Development zoning district around
the Freehold Center Bus Station. Green Brook Township, in Somerset County, focused on
zoning amendments for the existing Township Village Commercial District in order to facilitate
the development of a village center. All these studies were informed by data collection, review of
previous plans, and extensive public engagement. Each municipality’s plan is available on the
NJTPA website. These plans detail goals, analyses, and specific recommendations for mobility
improvements and redevelopment. Work is beginning with a sixth municipality, the City of
Hoboken, which seeks to develop a Complete Streets design and implementation plan as part of
an update to their Complete Streets policy.

Action Item 1: Support of Pavement, Bridge, Travel Time Reliability and Freight
Performance Targets Set by the New Jersey Department of Transportation
(Attachment 2)

A motion to approve the resolution was made by Passaic County seconded by Middlesex County
and carried unanimously.

Action Item 2: Approval of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Emissions
Reduction Performance Measure Targets for the NJTPA Region (Attachment3)

A motion to approve the resolution was made by Morris County seconded by Somerset County
and carried unanimously.

Project Prioritization — Freeholder Kathryn A. DeFillippo, Chair

Freeholder DeFillippo said the committee considered one action item at the August joint meeting
— a modification to the Bridge Deck/Superstructure Replacement Program in the FY 2018-2021
Transportation Improvement Program, as requested by NJDOT. The modification would add $10
million to this line item in the TIP to support current estimated construction costs for the Route
80, Bridges over Rockaway River Project in Morris County. These estimated costs increased
during the Final Design phase due to changes in the project scope that include a full



superstructure replacement instead of a deck replacement, as well as the need to change a
temporary bridge in the median from two lanes to three and to address abutment stability.
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program funds in the NJDOT fiscal constraint bank were
available for this purpose. The committee approved the modification, and no further action is
needed.

Freeholder DeFillippo said the committee received a briefing on NJDOT’s Route 495 viaduct
project on the approach to the Lincoln Tunnel. She said the project is only one of many facilities
in need of rehabilitation or replacement. Counties, cities and towns also must maintain and fix
their own extensive local infrastructure. She said the NJTPA’s Local Capital Project Delivery
Program provides an opportunity for subregions to tap into federal funding to address high
priority local bridge and roadway projects. It supports work from concept development to
preliminary engineering to construction. A solicitation for local concept development proposals
for fiscal year 2020 was distributed to the county engineers and RTAC members on August 31,
and the deadline for proposals is November 3.

Freight Initiatives — Freeholder Charles Kenny, Chair

Freeholder Kenny reported that the August 20 Freight Initiatives Committee meeting focused on
the innovative work of the Council on Port Performance (CPP). First, the committee heard from
John Nardi, President of the New York Shipping Association, which is a member organization of
the CPP. Mr. Nardi explained that the CPP grew out of a task force of port stakeholders formed
in 2013 to develop a report on port performance. That report made recommendations on
improving the Port’s efficiency, service reliability, and competitiveness. The CPP was created to
implement these recommendations and address emerging issues. For example, Mr. Nardi said
significant progress has been made in implementing a truck management system to better
accommodate trucks and reduce waiting times at terminals. One terminal has established an
appointment system that has been successful, and other terminals plan to follow suit. Also, the
Terminal Information Portal System for truckers now provides streamlined access to information
on container availability, booking status, vessel schedules, and empty returns. The Council
continues to advocate for reducing the number of chassis pools in operation at the Port to
simplify how truckers obtain and return chassis. That number is now down to just three.

The Freeholder said the committee next heard from Stephen Lyman, director of the Seamen’s
Church Institute, Port Newark. The institute, which was established to look after the personal,
professional and spiritual needs of mariners and seafarers, is a member of the CPP and has been
working to help attract, train, and hire a qualified and skilled workforce. Mr. Lyman reported
that the CPP hosted its first successful Career Awareness and Job Expo in Elizabeth last April.
The Expo boasted 50 Transportation, Logistics and Distribution industry vendors, 200 job
seekers and over 500 students.

Freeholder Kenny said that the Port Authority of New York & New Jersey (PANYNJ) is also a
member of the CPP. He said Hilary McCarron, Manager of Port Policy and Planning at the
PANYNIJ spoke next about the CPP’s efforts to build a skilled workforce for the sector. This
includes working with educational institutions to develop a Transportation, Logistics and
Distribution curriculum; pursuing a truck apprenticeship program; conducting tours for college-



level student groups; and engaging in outreach at schools to expand awareness of opportunities at
port-related businesses.

Freeholder Kenny said that, also at the meeting, the Committee learned from the PANYNJ that
total Port volume in June increased by 7 percent. ExpressRail service at Bayonne is now
operational, and the Jersey City to Brooklyn rail barge float service at Greenville Yard has
picked up two new customers. He said that NJDOT reported that Superload, the oversize and
overweight vehicles online permitting system, will be upgraded with a new user interface, and
training will be offered. Also, the NJDOT Freight Division continues to focus on implementing
recommendations from the recently issued Statewide Freight Plan.

Executive Committee — Freeholder Angel G. Estrada, Chair

Chairman Estrada called for a closed session of the Board meeting to discuss the
recommendation by the Executive Committee that Ms. Ameen be hired as NJTPA Executive
Director.

Action Item 3: Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the NJTPA Board to Enter Into
Closed Session (Attachment 4)

A motion to open a closed session of the Board was made by Warren County seconded by
Passaic County and carried unanimously.

A motion to close the session was made by Warren County, seconded by Sussex County, and
carried unanimously. Board members then moved to another room for the closed session

Action Item 4: Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Negotiation and Execution of an
Employment Contract for Executive Director By and Between Mary D. Ameen and
the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. (Attachment 5)

After resumption of the open meeting, a motion to approve the resolution was made by
Monmouth County, seconded by Morris County and carried unanimously.

On behalf of the Board, the Chairman thanked Ms. Ameen for her work as Acting Executive
Director over the past four months and said he looks forward to working with her in the years to
come.

H) Key Discussion Issue: Federal Transportation Legislation and Policy Outlook

Freeholder Matthew Holt, Hunterdon County (NARC Board of Directors, Region II) introduced
Erich Zimmerman, National Association of Regional Councils (NARC). Mr. Zimmerman briefed
the Board on federal transportation funding developments. He pointed out that the Highway
Trust Fund has received transfers of $142 billion from the General Fund over the past ten years
and is set to be in arrears in 2021.



Mr. Zimmerman said that Congressman Bill Schuster, Chairman of the House Transportation &
Infrastructure Committee, released a proposal to address short-term funding challenges with a
federal fuel tax increase, and other tax measures. The proposal, which is unlikely to be enacted,
also calls for a national pilot program to study the use of a per mile high-user fee.

Mr. Zimmerman said that a proposal from President Trump calls for leveraging federal dollars
by using public/private partnerships and other private investments and more emphasis on rural
transportation. This proposal also includes a devolution of responsibility for transportation
funding from the federal government to the states and moving toward a 20/80 percent
federal/local funding match from the current 80/20 percent. Mr. Zimmerman said this proposal
lacks a real Trust Fund component and is also unlikely to be enacted.

)] Public Participation

Neile Weissman, Complete George, advocated for widening the bicycle/pedestrian paths on the
George Washington Bridge to accommodate more users in the interests of increasing economic,
mobility, and health benefits for the region. He noted that doing so would help the PANYNJ
better meet its greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals as more cyclists use the bridge for
trans-Hudson commuting and recreation.

Soham K. Bhatnagar, a West Orange High School student, advocated for School Zone
Designation by NJDOT for a quarter mile stretch of State Highway Route 10. He said there are
three schools along this portion of the road serving 1,000 students, and the roadway lacks
standard signage, pavement markings, adequate sidewalks, dedicated cross walks, and reduced
speed limits there during school hours. Mr. Bhatnagar said the West Orange town engineer has
applied for School Zone designation with the NJDOT Bureau of Traffic Engineering and
Investigations, and he asked what the next step would be for moving the initiative forward.
Chairman Estrada said the NJTPA will look into the process and provide Mr. Bhatnagar more
information after the meeting.

The public portion of the meeting was closed.
J) Time and Place of Next Meeting

Chairman Estrada announced that the next meeting of the NJTPA will be held on Monday,
November 19, 2018 at 10:00 a.m., at the NJTPA offices at One Newark Center, Newark, NJ.

K) Adjournment

At 11:40 a.m., a motion to adjourn was made by Middlesex County, seconded by Morris County
and carried unanimously.



Attachment 1

NORTH JERSEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AUTHORITY, INC.
Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Attendance Record: September 10, 2018

Subregion/Agency

Voting Members/Alternates

Staff & Others

Bergen County

Peter Botsolas

Essex County

Not represented

Hudson County Megan Massey

Hunterdon County Hon. Matthew Holt

Jersey City Barkha Patel

Middlesex County Hon. Charles Kenny Si?ﬁ%i}yé?rflgﬁz;ghi

Monmouth County Teri O’Connor Joseph Ettore

) Hon. Kathy DeFillippo

Morris County Gerald ROI}IISICI‘ 7

Newark Phillip Scott

Ocean County Hon. John Kelly John Ernst

Passaic County Hon. John Bartlett Mike Lysicatos

Somerset County Hon. Mark Caliguire Ken Wedeen
Walt Lane

Sussex County Hon. Carl Lazzaro
Tom Drabic

Union County Hon. Angel G. Estrada Liza Betz

Warren County

Hon. Jason Sarnoski
David Dech

Governor’s Office

Craig Ambrose

NJDOT Lewis Daidone Eric Powers
NJ TRANSIT Jeremy Colangelo-Bryan

Port Authority of NY & NJ Ahmed Ismail
Citizen’s Representative Jared Rodriguez

Other Attendees

Steve McDonagh Amey Consulting

Neile Weissman Complete George

H. Ali Vaezi Dewberry

Cyrenthia Ward Federal Transit Administration

Paol St. Onoe Gibbons PC

Tara Shepherd goHunterdon

Bob Werkmeister GPI




Chris Jakway Louis Berger

Leslie London McManimon, Scotland & Baumann, LLC
Frank Scarantino Mott MacDonald

Tineen Howard City of Newark

Chigozie Onyema NJ Dept. of Consumer Affairs

Charles McManus Stantec

Dan Callas TransOptions

Soham K. Bhatnagar West Orange

Various members of Central Staff | NJTPA




Attachment 2

DRAFT RESOLUTION: SUPPORT FOR PAVEMENT, BRIDGE, TRAVEL TIME
RELIABILITY, AND FREIGHT PERFORMANCE MEASURE
TARGETS SET BY THE NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION (NJDOT)

WHEREAS, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. (NJTPA) has been
designated by the Governor of New Jersey as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for
the northern New Jersey region; and

WHEREAS, Title 23, Section 134 of the United States Code requires that each MPO
undertake a transportation planning process that shall provide for the establishment and use of a
performance-based approach to transportation decision-making to support national goals; and
that each MPO shall establish performance targets that address the performance measures to use
in tracking progress toward attainment of critical outcomes for the region and integrate those
targets into their planning documents and processes; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) rules on performance
management requires that MPOs and State departments of transportation coordinate on setting
performance targets for National Highway System (NHS) infrastructure condition, NHS system
performance, and freight performance measures; and

WHEREAS, the FHWA has established six national performance measures for NHS
infrastructure condition: 1) percent of the Interstate pavement lane-miles in good condition, 2)
percent of the Interstate pavement lane-miles in poor condition, 3) percent of the non-Interstate
NHS pavement lane-miles in good condition, and 4) percent of the non-Interstate NHS pavement
lane-miles in poor condition, 5) percent of the NHS bridges (by deck area) in good condition, and
6) percent of the NHS bridges (by deck area) in poor condition; and

WHEREAS, the FHWA has established two national performance measures for NHS
system performance: 1) percent of person-miles traveled with reliable travel times on the
Interstate system, and 2) percent of person-miles traveled with reliable travel times on the non-
Interstate NHS; and

WHEREAS, the FHWA has established one national performance measure for freight:
the truck travel time reliability index on the Interstate system; and

WHEREAS, based on the FHWA final rule on metropolitan planning, MPOs must
establish targets for the infrastructure condition, system performance, and freight measures by
November 16, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA coordinated with the New Jersey Department of Transportation
(NJDOT) and the other MPOs in New Jersey on analyzing trends and developing appropriate
statewide targets for these measures; and



2
WHEREAS, the final rule on metropolitan planning states that MPOs have two options
— 1) agree to program investments in support of NJDOT’s targets, or 2) set their own
quantifiable targets; and

WHEREAS, the statewide targets appropriately reflect and will serve as suitable
benchmarks for the planning goals and desired outcomes for the projects and programs of the
NJTPA Regional Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and

WHEREAS, the FHWA metropolitan planning rule also requires that MPO TIPs “shall
include, to the maximum extent practicable, a description of the anticipated effect of the TIP
toward achieving the performance targets”; and

WHEREAS, no action authorized by the NJTPA shall have force or effect until ten
(10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the
meeting of the Board of Trustees has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior
to expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action
shall become effective upon such approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NJTPA hereby supports the
NJIDOT statewide targets for the NHS infrastructure condition, NHS system performance, and
freight performance measures; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the NJTPA will program investments that
support the achievement of these performance targets; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the NJTPA will add language to the FY
2018-2021 TIP discussing these targets and the anticipated effect of the TIP toward
achieving these targets; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the New
Jersey Department of Transportation for submission to the Federal Highway Administration.



Attachment 3

DRAFT RESOLUTION: APPROVAL OF CONGESTION MITIGATION AND AIR
QUALITY (CMAQ) EMISSIONS REDUCTION
PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS FOR THE NJTPA
REGION

WHEREAS, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. (NJTPA) has been
designated by the Governor of New Jersey as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for
the northern New Jersey region; and

WHEREAS, Title 23, Section 134 of the United States Code requires that each MPO
undertake a transportation planning process that shall provide for the establishment and use of a
performance-based approach to transportation decision-making to support national goals; and
that each MPO shall establish performance targets that address the performance measures to use
in tracking progress toward attainment of critical outcomes for the region and integrate those
targets into their planning documents and processes; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) rules on performance
management requires that MPOs and State departments of transportation coordinate on setting
performance targets for CMAQ emissions reduction performance measures within air quality
nonattainment and maintenance areas; and

WHEREAS, the entire NJTPA region has been designated by the US Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) as a nonattainment area for ozone, and portions of the NJTPA region
are maintenance areas for carbon monoxide (CO) and fine particulate matter (PMzs); and

WHEREAS, the FHW A-established performance measures applicable to the NJTPA
region include the emissions reductions, in kilograms per day, of two criteria pollutants—CO,

and PM» s—and two ozone precursors—volatile organic compounds (VOC) and nitrogen oxides
(NOx); and

WHEREAS, based on the FHWA final rule on metropolitan planning, MPOs must
establish targets for the CMAQ emissions reduction measures by November 16, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the FHWA rule on performance management relating to this measure
states that MPOs that contain nonattainment or maintenance areas that overlap an urbanized area
with a population above 1 million people must establish quantitative 2-year and 4-year targets
for the CMAQ emissions reduction measures and prepare a CMAQ Performance Plan; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA region contains nonattainment and maintenance areas that
overlap two urbanized areas with populations above 1 million people (the New York—Newark,
NY—NJ—CT Urbanized Area and the Philadelphia, PA—NJ—DE—MD Urbanized Area); and



WHEREAS, the CMAQ Performance Plan must be submitted by each applicable MPO
to their state DOT by October 1, 2018 (and biennially thereafter), and must include the baseline
values and established targets for the CMAQ emissions reduction measures and the previously
established CMAQ traffic congestion measures along with a description of projects identified
for CMAQ funding and how such projects will contribute to achieving these performance
targets; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA coordinated with NJDOT and the other MPOs in New Jersey
on analyzing trends and developing appropriate statewide and MPO regional targets for these
measures; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA Region 2-year cumulative target (for FY 2018 and FY 2019)
for CO is 31.927 kg/day and the 4-year cumulative target (for FY 2018 through FY 2021) is
63.010 kg/day; the NJTPA Region 2-year cumulative target for PMz 5 is 1.663 kg/day and the 4-
year cumulative target is 3.267 kg/day; the NJTPA Region 2-year cumulative target for VOC is
14.026 kg/day and the 4-year cumulative target is 27.318 kg/day; and the NJTPA Region 2-year
cumulative target for NOy is 101.722 kg/day and the 4-year cumulative target is 202.745 kg/day;
and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA targets appropriately reflect and will serve as suitable
benchmarks for the planning goals and desired outcomes for the projects and programs of the
NJTPA Regional Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and

WHEREAS, the 4-year targets can be revised in the NJDOT mid performance period
report to FHWA on October 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the FHWA metropolitan planning rule also requires that MPO TIPs “shall
include, to the maximum extent practicable, a description of the anticipated effect of the TIP
toward achieving the performance targets”; and

WHEREAS, no action authorized by the NJTPA shall have force or effect until ten
(10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the
meeting of the Board of Trustees has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior
to expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action
shall become effective upon such approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NJTPA hereby endorses the
identified emissions reduction performance measure targets for the NJTPA region; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the NJTPA will add language to the FY
2018-2021 TIP, discussing these targets and the anticipated effect of the TIP toward
achieving these targets; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the NJTPA will prepare a CMAQ Performance Plan
for submittal to NJDOT by October 1, 2018; and



3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the New
Jersey Department of Transportation for submission to the Federal Highway Administration.



Attachment 4
DRAFT RESOLUTION: TO ENTER INTO CLOSED SESSION

WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Open Public Meetings Act, codified at N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 et
seq., permits the exclusion of the public from a meeting in certain circumstances, including
contract negotiations and personnel matters; and

WHEREAS, this public body is of the opinion that such circumstances presently exist.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE NORTH JERSEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AUTHORITY, INC., AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The aforementioned recitals are incorporated herein as though fully set forth
at length.

Section 2. The public shall be excluded from discussion of and action upon the
hereinafter specified subject matter.

Section 3. The general nature of the subject matter to be discussed is contract
negotiation and personnel matters.

Section 4. It is anticipated at this time that the above-stated subject matter will be made
public if final action is to be taken, or when the privilege of confidentiality no longer attaches.

Section 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately, September 10, 2018.



Attachment

DRAFT RESOLUTION: AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND
EXECUTION OF AN EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT FOR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BY AND BETWEEN MARY
D. AMEEN AND THE NORTH JERSEY
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AUTHORITY, INC.

WHEREAS, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. is a New Jersey
nonprofit corporation formed pursuant to Title 15A of the New Jersey Statutes (the “Corporation”);
and

WHEREAS, the Board has examined the qualifications of Mary D. Ameen and found her to
be well-qualified and suited to administering and managing the day-to-day operations of the
Corporation, and to direct and oversee the work of the Corporation, including, but not limited to,
planning for adequate and efficient modes and routes for the movement of people and goods within
and through the region; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has determined to authorize the negotiation and execution of
an employment contract hiring Mary D. Ameen as the new Executive Director of the Corporation
upon terms and conditions mutually agreeable to the parties thereto; and

WHEREAS, no action authorized by the NJTPA shall have force or effect until ten (10)
days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the meeting
of the Board of Trustees has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to expiration
of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become
effective upon such approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
NORTH JERSEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AUTHORITY, INC., AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The aforementioned recitals are incorporated herein as though fully set forth
at length.

Section 2. The Corporation hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Corporation, in
consultation with counsel, to negotiate and execute an employment agreement by and between the
Corporation and Mary D. Ameen as Executive Director upon terms mutually agreeable to the
Corporation and Mary D. Ameen. Upon the negotiation thereof, the Chairman and the Secretary of
the Corporation are authorized to execute such employment agreement and the Secretary is directed
to place the Corporate Seal thereon.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately, September 10, 2018.


beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5

beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text


Novemberl9, 2018- AttachmentG.1


beverly
Typewritten Text
November 19, 2018 - Attachment G.1.

beverly
Typewritten Text


AttachmeniG.1.a

DRAFT RESOLUTION: APPROVAL OF REVISIONS TO FOUR PROJECTS FOR
THE FY 2018 — 2021 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM AS REQUESTED BY THE PORT AUTHORITY
OF NEW YORK & NEW JERSY TO UTILIZE DISASTER
RECOVERY AND RESILIENCE PROGRAM FUNDING

WHEREAS, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. (NJTPA) has been
designated by the Governor of New Jersey as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for
the northern New Jersey region; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA formally adopted the FY 2018 — 2021 Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP) on November 13, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA on September 24, 2012 approved a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) among the NJTPA, the New Jersey Department of Transportation
(NJDOT), and NJ TRANSIT on procedures to amend and modify the State Transportation
Improvement Program and the NJTPA TIP; and

WHEREAS, the TIP may be revised any time; and

WHEREAS, according to the MOU the addition of a project to the TIP or the addition of
federal funds to a project where none are currently programmed and a new air quality conformity
determination is not required constitutes a minor amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Port Authority of New York & New Jersey (PANYN)) is requesting the
addition of a previously programmed project (Priority Protective Measures, DB# PA1410) to be
programmed with federal (Section 5324) funds; and

WHEREAS, the PANYNI is recommending the reprogramming of Section 5324 funding
for the following three projects: Priority Protective Measures (DB# PA1410), Substations (DB#
PA1413) and Concrete Sea Wall East of Harrison Car Maintenance Facility (DB# PA1424); and

WHEREAS, fiscal constraint is being maintained because the PANYNIJ is requesting
that funds be reprogrammed from the Trackwork Repair and Restoration project (DB# PA1419)
to support these efforts; and

WHEREAS, these minor amendments are exempt from an air quality conformity
determination and do not impact the current conformity determination; and

WHEREAS, Congestion Management Process requirements do not apply to this action;
and

WHEREAS, the FY 2018 TIP conforms to the MAP-21/FAST Act performance-based
planning requirements; and


beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.1.a.

beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text


WHEREAS, consistent with NJTPA public participation procedures, the NJTPA has
provided opportunities for review of these actions; and

WHEREAS, no action authorized by the NJTPA shall have force or effect until ten (10)
days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the
meeting of the Board of Trustees has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to
expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall
become effective upon such approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Jersey Transportation
Planning Authority hereby approves the specified amendment to the FY 2018 — 2021
Transportation Improvement Program.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution is forwarded to the Port
Authority of New York & New Jersey for submission to the Federal Transit Administration.



AttachmentG.1.b

Summary of Action

Approval of Revisions to Four Projects for the
FY 2018 - 2021 Transportation Improvement Program
As Requested by Port Authority of New York & New Jersey
to Utilize Disaster Recovery and Resilience Program Funding

Action: In order to advance the following projects, Port Authority of New York & New Jersey
(PANYNJ) has requested amending the FY 2018 — 2021 TIP to program federal funds.

Background: According to the TIP Memorandum of Understanding, when a project is added to the
TIP or when federal funds are added to a project where none are currently programmed, and a new
air quality conformity determination is not required, which constitutes a minor amendment, action is
required by the NJTPA Project Prioritization Committee and the NJTPA Board of Trustees. The
following revisions are for the utilization of Disaster Recovery and Resiliency Program federal
funds (Section 5324 Public Transportation Emergency Relief Program Funds) and PANYNIJ
matching funds. They are exempt from an air quality conformity determination and do not impact
the current conformity determination. Also requested are two actions that could be processed
administratively but are included in this package to show complete fiscal constraint.

Minor Amendment:
e Priority Protective Measures, Hudson County, Essex County DB# PA1410
This request is for the reestablishment of this project previously included in the TIP/STIP.
Additional funds are required to provide for the more detailed scope. The funds are available
with the reallocation of FTA Section 5324 and PANYNJ matching funds from DB# PA1419.
($11.949 million in FFY 2019 of Sect 5324 funds and $1.328 million in FFY 2019 of
PANYNIJ funds)

Modifications:

e Trackwork Repair and Restoration, Hudson County, Essex County DB# PA1419
This request is for the transfer of previously programmed Section 5324 and PANYNJ funds
to support additional construction on the Priority Protective Measures project DB# PA1410
(see above), the Substations project DB# PA1413 (see below) and the Concrete Sea Wall
East of Harrison Car Maintenance Facility project DB# PA 1424 (see below).

e Substations, Hudson County, Essex County DB# PA1413
This request is to reprogram FY 2018 funds to FY 2019 ($30.5 million of Sect 5324 and
$3.389 million of PANYNIJ funds). Additional funds are programmed from PA1419 ($9
million in FFY 2019 of Sect 5324 funds and $1 million in FFY 2019 of PANYNJ funds).

e Concrete Sea Wall East of Harrison Car Maintenance Facility, Hudson County
DB# PA1424
This request is to reprogram FY 2018 funds to FY 2019 ($8.801 million of Sect 5324 and
$0.978 million of PANYNIJ funds). Additional funds are programmed from PA1419 ($5
million in FFY 2019 of Sect 5324 funds and $0.556 million in FFY 2019 of PANYNJ
funds).

The attached documents provide further details on each of these projects.


beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.1.b.

beverly
Typewritten Text


Justification for Action: Approval of these minor amendments to the FY 2018 — 2021 TIP will
allow the funds to be secured and the projects to advance.

Staff Recommendation: Central Staff recommends approval of this action.




PENDING ACTION

NJTPA
Transportation Improvement Program Fiscal Years 2018 - 2021
Routes: Mileposts: N/A DBNUM: PA1410
Name: Priority Protective Measures
PENDING
DESCRIPTION

High priority protective measures to ensure PATH is well prepared for future hurricane seasons and to provide protection to PATH
facilities against flash floods and storm surges - measures to include Stop Logs, Horizontal Deck, Sand-filled Barriers, Water-filled
Barriers, Watertight Doors, Pumps, Generators, and Fencing Area, and CIP Wall. This item also includes Permanent Flood
Resiliency Repairs for PATH's Hoboken Station.

Counties: Hudson Essex Municipalities: Hoboken City Harrison Twp Jersey City
Project Type: RCIS Category: Transit Preservation
Sponsor: PANYNJ Est. Total Project Cost: (Million) $0.000
TIP: |
PENDING Unconstrained

FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $13.277 Information Year
MPO |PHASE |SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA ICON PANY&NJ $1.328
NJTPA  ICON SECT 5324 $11.949

$13.277

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/19/2018



State of New Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1035 Parkway Avenue
PO Box 600
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

MPO:

NJTPA

PROJECT: Priority Protective Measures
DBNUM: PA1410
TRACK #: -PA1410-0-A-2018
TYPE OF PROJECT CHANGE: Project Cost increase
ACTION TAKEN: Re-establish this project entry previously included in TIP/STIP, providing a more detailed description of scope and
reallocating currently programmed funds from PA1419 to this project in FFY2019 as follows: Sec. 5324 $
11,949,300 and PANYNJ matching funds - $ 1.327.700.
REASON FOR CHANGE:
Update funding and project description for consistency w/ final FTA grant application
MPO ACTION REQUIRED: Action requires MPO board approval
FISCAL CONSTRAINT:
Comments: Funding provided through reallocation of FTA Sec. 5324 and PANYNJ matching funds transferred from another
PATH Sandy project (PA1419) in current STIP

CONFORMITY:
- The current conformity determination will not be impacted. The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has determined
that this project is exempt from conformity analysis as per the Transportation Conformity Rule (40 CFR 93.126 and 93.127).
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT:
- The MPO has followed their adopted public involvement procedures for this type of amendment / modification.



PENDING ACTION NJTPA

Transportation Improvement Program Fiscal Years 2018 - 2021

Routes: Mileposts: N/A DBNUM: PA1419
Name: Trackwork Repair and Restoration

This program element includes repair or replacement of trackwork, ties, welded rail, power rail, breakers, cabling,
heater crossovers, Hoboken Station under-platform fans, drainage and related equipment damaged by
floodwaters and related debris as well as saltwater damage.

Counties: Hudson Essex Municipalities: Various
Project Type: RCIS Category: Transit Preservation
Sponsor: PANYNJ Est. Total Project Cost: (Million)
TIP: |
CURRENT Unconstrained
FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $87.096 Information Year
MPO PHASE |SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA  ICON PANYNJ $4.440 | $4.266
NJTPA  ICON SECT 5324 $40.000 | $38.390
$44.440 | $42.656
PENDING Unconstrained
FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $58.268 Information Year
MPO PHASE |SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA  ICON PANYNJ $5.827
NJTPA  ICON SECT 5324 $52.441
$58.268

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/18/2018



State of New Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1035 Parkway Avenue
PO Box 600
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

MPO:

NJTPA

PROJECT: Trackwork Repair and Restoration

DBNUM: PA1419

TRACK #: N-PA1419-3-M-2018

TYPE OF PROJECT CHANGE: Project Cost decrease

ACTION TAKEN: Reallocation of FTA Sec. 5324 and PANYNJ matching funds from this project to three other PATH Sandy

Recovery Program elements, and shift of remaining funds for PA1419 from FFY2018 to FFY2019

REASON FOR CHANGE:
Align available FTA Sec. 5324/PANYNJ matching dollars w/ final versions of FTA grant applications to support ongoing PATH
recovery/resiliency projects includes transfer of $ 11,949,300 in FTA Sec 5324 funds and $ 1,327,700 in PANYNJ matching
funds to PA1410, per companion amendment request. In addition, the Port Authority is submitting requests for administrative
modifications to transfer funds from PA1419 to PA1413 (Sec. 5324 - $9.000M and PANYNJ $ 1.000M), and to PA1424 (Sec.
5324 - $5.000 M and PANYNJ $ 0.556 M) all to be programmed for FFY2019.

MPO ACTION REQUIRED: Action requires MPO board approval

FISCAL CONSTRAINT:
Comments: Requested action reallocates FTA 5324 and PANYNJ matching funds within the total PATH Sandy Program

funding currently in the TIP/STIP, w/ funds transferred from PA1419 to PA1410, PA1413, and PA1424

CONFORMITY:
- The current conformity determination will not be impacted. The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has determined
that this project is exempt from conformity analysis as per the Transportation Conformity Rule (40 CFR 93.126 and 93.127).
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT:
- The MPO has followed their adopted public involvement procedures for this type of amendment / modification.



PENDING ACTION NJTPA

Transportation Improvement Program Fiscal Years 2018 - 2021

Routes: Mileposts: N/A DBNUM: PA1413
Name:  Substations

Replacement/Upgrades of Substations 7, 8, 9, and 14 in Hudson County. The substations provide power for the
PATH system. Funding is provided for these substation replacement projects along with midterm repairs that need
to be made to the affected substations. These substations were damaged by storm surges and flooding.
Equipment that was damaged and not operational has been replaced or refurbished. The outdoor switchyard and
building also were undermined due to the storm surge. The existing substations have reached the end of their
useful life. The new substations will be constructed above the advisory flood elevation. Land acquisition is
necessary in multiple locations so that the current substations can continue to operate during the construction
period without any interruption to service. The projects include Substation Interim Repairs/Rehab-Renovation and
Midterm Repairs and Replacement/Updates for Substations 7, 8, 9, and 14.

Counties: Hudson Essex Municipalities: Various
Project Type: RCIS Category: Transit Preservation
Sponsor: PANYNJ Est. Total Project Cost: (Million)
TIP: |
CURRENT Unconstrained
FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $53.945 Information Year
MPO |PHASE [SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA ICON PANYNJ $3.389 | $5.056
NJTPA 1ICON SECT 5324 $30.500 | $15.000
$33.889 | $20.056
PENDING Unconstrained
FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $63.945 Information Year
MPO |PHASE |[SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA CON PANYNJ $9.445
NJTPA ICON SECT 5324 $54.500
$63.945

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/19/2018



State of New Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1035 Parkway Avenue
PO Box 600
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

MPO:

NJTPA

PROJECT: Substations
DBNUM: PA1413
TRACK #: N-PA1413-2-M-2018
TYPE OF PROJECT CHANGE: Project Cost increase
ACTION TAKEN: Transfer of Sec. 5324 and PANYNJ matching funds programmed for this project from FFY2018 to FFY 2019 in
addition, transfer to this project for FFY2019 funds from PA1419 as follows: Sec. 5324 - $9.000M and PANYNJ $
1.000
REASON FOR CHANGE:
Align TIP/STIP documentation with final FTA grant applications and update anticipated obligation
MPO ACTION REQUIRED: Administrative action
FISCAL CONSTRAINT:
Comments: Both the shift of funds from FFY2018 to FFY2019 already programmed for this project and the Sec. 5324 and
PANYNJ matching funds to be transferred to this project from PA1419 are in the current TIP/STIP.
CONFORMITY:
- The current conformity determination will not be impacted. The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has determined
that this project is exempt from conformity analysis as per the Transportation Conformity Rule (40 CFR 93.126 and 93.127).
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT:
- The MPO has followed their adopted public involvement procedures for this type of amendment / modification.



PENDING ACTION NJTPA

Transportation Improvement Program Fiscal Years 2018 - 2021

Routes: Mileposts: N/A DBNUM: PA1424
Name: Concrete Sea Wall East of Harrison Car Maintenance Facility

PANYNJ will receive funding to construct a concrete sea wall to protect PATH tracks near the Passaic River. The
total eligible amount is $ 22,421,300. The FTA share is $ 16,815,975. The PANYNJ share is $ 5,605,325.

Counties: Hudson Municipalities: Harrison Town
Project Type: RCIS Category: Transit Preservation
Sponsor: PANYNJ Est. Total Project Cost: (Million)
TIP: |
CURRENT Unconstrained
FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $9.779 Information Year
MPO |PHASE |SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA  ICON PANYNJ $.978
NJTPA  ICON SECT 5324 $8.801
$9.779
PENDING Unconstrained
FY 2018 - 2021 TIP Cost: (Million) $15.335 Information Year
MPO [|PHASE [SOURCE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022-2027
NJTPA — ICON PANYNJ $1.534
NJTPA  ICON SECT 5324 $13.801
$15.335

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/19/2018



State of New Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1035 Parkway Avenue
PO Box 600
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0600

MPO:

NJTPA

PROJECT: Concrete Sea Wall East of Harrison Car Maintenance Facility
DBNUM: PA1424
TRACK #: N-PA1424-1-M-2018
TYPE OF PROJECT CHANGE: Project Cost increase
ACTION TAKEN: Transfer all Sec. 5324 and PANYNJ matching funds currently programmed for this project in FFY2018 to
FFY2019, and in addition transfer from PA1419 to this project $ 5.000 M Sec. 5324 and $ 0.556 M PANYNJ funds.
REASON FOR CHANGE:
Update cost and timetable for obligation with final FTA grant application including this project.
MPO ACTION REQUIRED: Administrative action
FISCAL CONSTRAINT:
Comments: Transferring Sec. 5324 and PANYNJ funds currently programmed in FFY2018, and transferring currently
programmed funds from PA1419 (Sec. 5324 - $ 5.000M and PANYNJ 0.556 M) also to FFY2019

CONFORMITY:
- The current conformity determination will not be impacted. The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has determined
that this project is exempt from conformity analysis as per the Transportation Conformity Rule (40 CFR 93.126 and 93.127).
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT:
- The MPO has followed their adopted public involvement procedures for this type of amendment / modification.



Novemberl9, 2018- AttachmentG.2.


beverly
Typewritten Text
November 19, 2018 - Attachment G.2.


AttachmentG.2.a

DRAFT RESOLUTION: APPROVAL OF THE NJTPA PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
PLAN

WHEREAS, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. (NJTPA) has been
designated by the Governor of New Jersey as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for
the northern New Jersey region; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA, pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 450.322, is responsible for the
development and implementation of a formal document that describes its public engagement
objectives and how it involves the region’s residents and other interested parties in the NJTPA’s
various programs, projects and plans; and

WHEREAS, federal regulations call for early and continuing public involvement
throughout the planning and programmatic process, with reasonable opportunity for public
comment; and

WHEREAS, the input and participation of the public is critical to transportation planning
and investment in decision-making and to development of Regional Transportation Plans,
Transportation Improvement Programs, Air Quality Conformity Determinations, and other key
planning products; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA’s current Public Participation Plan was approved in 2007 and
last amended in 2012; and

WHEREAS, this Public Engagement Plan has been developed to more effectively meet
the NJTPA’s responsibilities for public notification, involvement, and participation through a
variety of activities, outreach efforts, social media, and other communication modes; and

WHEREAS, this Public Engagement Plan accurately reflects the comprehensive,
innovative and nationally recognized public outreach efforts implemented for Plan 2045 and the
Together North Jersey Plan; and

WHEREAS, consistent with the NJTPA’s public engagement procedures, the NJTPA
has distributed the draft Plan regionally and provided opportunities for the public to review and
provide input and comments during a 45-day public comment period; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA’s Public Engagement Plan fully meets the goals and
requirements as set forth in the Federal Metropolitan Planning Regulations and the Fixing
America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST ACT); and

WHEREAS, no action authorized by the NJTPA shall have force or effect until ten (10)
days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the
meeting of the Board of Trustees has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to
expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall
become effective upon such approval; and


beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.2.a.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Jersey Transportation
Planning Authority hereby approves the NJTPA’s draft Public Engagement Plan and its
appendices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution is forwarded to the
Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration, U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, New Jersey Department of Transportation, NJ TRANSIT and New Jersey Department
of Environmental Protection.



AttachmentG.2.b

SUMMARY OF ACTION ITEM

Action Item: Approval of the NJTPA Public Engagement Plan

Background: Under the federal regulations governing the metropolitan planning process,
Metropolitan Planning Organizations must develop and implement a plan providing reasonable
and continued opportunities for the public to be involved in the metropolitan transportation
planning process. The plan must be developed in consultation with interested parties and must,
among other things, describe procedures for public notice, review and comment at key decision
points.

While the NJTPA’s existing Public Participation Plan, last updated in 2012, complies with
federal regulations, this new NJTPA Public Engagement Plan (PEP) was developed to expand
and enhance opportunities for public participation in the metropolitan planning process as
outlined in federal regulations.

The NJTPA’s new PEP outlines how it involves the region’s residents in the MPO’s programs,
projects and plans; it describes the NJTPA’s public engagement objectives; and it identifies
specific approaches, techniques and opportunities for ongoing communication and interaction
with the public.

Given the complexity and diversity of the northern and central New Jersey region, home to
nearly 7 million people, the NJTPA is committed to understanding the public’s diverse needs,
concerns, and ideas about transportation and related issues such as air quality, for example.

The PEP describes different ways we promote participation by all members of the public
interested in the NJTPA’s activities to improve regional transportation. It includes information
on communicating with the NJTPA and accessing information; NJTPA Board, standing
committee, and other public meetings; the NJTPA’s public and stakeholder involvement process
for major plans and programs; and guidance on public engagement of staff or partner agencies or
consultants working on NJTPA-sponsored projects and programs.

In the PEP, the NJTPA commits to treating the public as partners and to being a leader in
engaging the public. Some new opportunities for public engagement include: the proposed
establishment of a Public Engagement Advisory Committee; the establishment of an advisory
committee to get more and better participation from young adults; strategies aimed at better
including under-represented populations in decision-making; and guidance for developing future
public participation plans for NJTPA-sponsored programs and projects.

As required, a 45-day public comment period was held between September 19 and November 2,
2018. In addition to a dedicated web page and email address for public comments, a meeting at
the NJTPA on October 11, 2018 gave the public and other interested parties an opportunity to
learn more about and comment on the draft Plan. The public meeting followed an “open house”
format; staff set up stations around the NJTPA Board Room so visitors could browse sample
outreach activities. The stations included a general NJTPA booth with copies of the PEP. In
addition, staff provided comment cards so visitors could record and leave any


beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.2.b.

beverly
Typewritten Text


comments/thoughts or ideas about the PEP. The meeting also included a 15-minute presentation
providing an overview of the Public Engagement Plan and some background information on the
NJTPA and its engagement activities. No formal public comments were received at the open
house, online, or during the comment period. Only technical corrections based on staff-level
recommendations were made to the draft Plan.

Summary of Action: The NJTPA Public Engagement is a broad policy document that outlines
how the NJTPA seeks to involve the region's residents and other interested parties in its
programs, projects and plans. The PEP describes public engagement objectives and identifies
specific techniques and opportunities for ongoing interaction with the public and other
stakeholders. It reflects a more innovative, inclusive, and comprehensive approach to public
engagement, building on extensive research into best practices and the NJTPA’s own first-hand
experience with the innovative and nationally-recognized Plan 2045 public involvement
program. The NJTPA Public Participation Plan will allow the NJTPA to continue to fulfill all its
obligations under federal metropolitan planning regulations and the Fixing America’s Surface
Transportation Act (FAST Act).

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the NJTPA Public Engagement Plan.




AttachmentG.2.c

North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority

Public
-ngagement
Plan

DRAFT November 2018

allly

NJTPA


beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.2.c.

beverly
Typewritten Text


Table of Contents

INEFOAUCTION ettt st sttt et e bt e s bt e s bt e sat e st e e bt e bt e beesbeesaeesateeaneenbeesaeesanenas 1
Chapter 1: Background on Metropolitan Planning Organizations and the NJTPA ...........coocciiiveeeeeeecccnnns 2
1.1 History and PUrpose of the MPO ......cooiiiii et e e s s 2
1.2 LI L NP SP 3
Chapter 2: Public Participation Mission and GOalS.........c.eeeeiuiieiiiiiie et e e e et 7
21 MISSION AN GOAIS ...ttt st ettt b e sb e sbe e st e et e e beesbeesaeesane e 7
2.2 Overview of Federal Requirements for Public Participation ........ccccceeeeiieieecciee e, 7
2.3 Public Participation for All..........oo it 8
Chapter 3: Opportunities to Engage with the NJTPA ... e 11
3.1 FINAINg INfOrMatioN .oooeeieie e e e s sbee e e s ee e e s eabe e e e enreeas 11
3.2 Attending Meetings and EVENTS.......ooocuiiiiiciieeeccee et bee e e ee e e 13
33 The NJTPA’s Commitment to Accessible ENgagement .......ccueeeeeciieeicciiee et 15
Chapter 4: Public Participation in the NJTPA’s Plans and Programs..........ccccecueeeeeiiieeeeciieeeccieeeeecveeee e 17
4.1 Formal Public COmMMENT PEIIOAS. ....coviieiieeiee ettt ettt ettt s e e 17
4.2 Participation in Together NOIrth JEIrSEY ...ttt 19
4.3 Participation in Regional and Subregional Programs..........cccccveiivieiiiiciee e 20
4.4 Participation in Capital Programming and Local Projects........ccccccceeeeeiieeeecciee e e 22
Chapter 5: Public Engagement Best Practices and RESOUICES........cuueeeieviieeieiieeeeciieeeeecvteeeeeveeeeeeveeeeeennes 23
5.1 Overview of the Public Engagement TOOIKIt.........cccouiiiiiiiiicciiiee et 23
5.2 Using the Toolkit to Develop a Public Participation Plan.........ccceceviiiiieiiccciee e, 23
Yo7 o 1=] oY [To] Y-SR 27
Appendix 1 — CUrrent Board Of TIUSTEES ......ccocuiii ittt et e e e e e s et e e e eareeas 27
Appendix 2 — Legislation Regarding Public Participation in Transportation Planning Processes............ 27
Appendix 3 — Social Media CommMENT POLICY........coiiiiiiiiiciee et e et e et 29
Appendix 4 — List of NJTPA Public Documents Depository LIbraries ........cccceeecvveeeeeciieeeccciieeeecieee e, 30
Appendix 5 —Amendments to the RTP OF TIP......coo ittt rrre e e vre e e 31

Appendix 6 — Determining Translation NEEAS ........cccuuiiiiiiiii i e e 32



Introduction

As the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for a 13-county region in northern and central New
Jersey, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority (NJTPA) actively seeks participation from the
public in its regional planning and capital programming activities. This Public Engagement Plan (PEP) sets
the NJTPA’s standards for this participation and guides the agency in creating opportunities for
interaction with the public.

Under federal law, MPOs must issue a PEP that does the following:

e Defines the methods and goals the agency follows in providing public involvement opportunities

e Establishes strategies for reaching all interested parties

e Undergoes periodic reviews and updates, including a 45-day review and comment period before
it is adopted.

In keeping with these requirements, specific recommendations are presented to promote participation
by all members of the public interested in getting involved in the regional transportation planning
process. The PEP lists the various channels through which the public can access information from or
communicate with the NJTPA. It also describes what to expect when attending NJTPA-hosted public
meetings, including those of the Board of Trustees. Furthermore, the PEP describes how the NJTPA
involves stakeholders in the process of developing major plans and programs such as the Regional
Transportation Plan and the Transportation Improvement Program.

The PEP also reflects the NJTPA’s commitment to serving the needs of the region’s broadly diverse
population. The PEP documents the steps that the NJTPA takes to include those who have been
historically under-represented in civic processes, including individuals with limited English proficiency,
minorities, and people with low incomes. It includes specific strategies the NJTPA will use to overcome
barriers to public participation that members of these groups may face.

The PEP also provides guidance on public participation to staff of member agencies and consultants
working on projects and programs sponsored by the NJTPA. These practitioners should use the PEP and
the resources it provides to ensure that the work they do is consistent with the NJTPA’s mission and
goals regarding public involvement.

The PEP is an update to the NJTPA’s public participation plan adopted in 2007 and last revised in 2012. It
is the product of research into public participation best practices, as well as experience generated by the
NJTPA’s extensive outreach efforts, particularly those for Plan 2045: Connecting North Jersey, the long-
range Regional Transportation Plan adopted in November 2017. Prior to and during the outreach and
public comment phases of the development of Plan 2045, the NJTPA researched and applied innovative
engagement strategies in order to more effectively engage with the public. These strategies are
presented throughout the PEP and particularly inform how the NJTPA seeks to engage under-
represented populations.



Chapter 1: Background on Metropolitan Planning Organizations and the
NJTPA

1.1 History and Purpose of the MPO

Regional planning organizations like the NJTPA were created to address a simple fact about
transportation facilities: They span and link numerous communities over wide areas. The region’s 6.7
million residents rely on the transportation network — whether travelling by road, rail, foot, bike, ferry
or air — to get them to where they need to go. But transportation is also vital to the region’s economy.
North Jersey is home to the largest container port on the Atlantic seaboard and more than 500 million
tons of goods move through the region predominately by truck.

Recognizing this reality, the federal government in the early 1970s required urbanized regions of the
country — areas with more than 50,000 people that constitute distinct “commutersheds” — to establish
formal transportation planning bodies made up of local elected officials and state agency
representatives. Congress tasked these Metropolitan Planning Organizations, or MPOs, with conducting
transportation planning and overseeing transportation investments. In this planning process, the MPO
sets the vision and goals for the region’s transportation system and allocates federal funds for transit,
road, bicycle, and pedestrian projects in its region.

Congress has continued to pass laws that support and enhance the authority of MPOs. In 1991, the
federal Intermodal Transportation Efficiency Act, or ISTEA, expanded the responsibilities of MPOs for
allocating federal funding for many highway and transit projects. Subsequent federal laws, including the
Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015, have continued to strengthen the regional
planning conducted by MPOs.

The core activities of all MPOs are:

e Establish and manage a fair and impartial setting for effective regional decision making.

e |dentify and evaluate transportation-improvement options and other information needed for
MPO decision making by conducting planning studies. These are described in the MPQO’s Unified
Planning Work Program (UPWP).

e Prepare and update a long-range Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), with (at least) a 20-year
horizon.

e Develop a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), the short-range (four-year) program of
capital improvements needed to implement the RTP.

e Ensure transportation plans, programs, projects and policies help improve air quality in the
region and conform with air quality goals in the State Implementation Plan (SIP).

e Coordinate with transportation operators to establish, monitor and evaluate performance
targets for surface transportation and public transportation.

e Involve the general public by offering all interested persons opportunities to participate in the
decision-making functions of the MPO.



Nationwide there are more than 400 MPOs, including
two others in New Jersey: the Delaware Valley
Regional Planning Commission and the South Jersey
Transportation Planning Organization. Between them,
the three MPOs cover all of New Jersey.

1.2  The NJTPA

The NJTPA oversees more than $2 billion in
transportation investments each year. It is responsible
for performing the core MPO functions described in
Section 1.1, ensuring that transportation funding is
invested wisely to improve mobility, promote
economic activity and safeguard the environment.
Ultimately, all projects that use federal transportation
funding must be approved through the NJTPA's
metropolitan transportation planning process.

The NJTPA performs a number of tasks to support this
process. It conducts transportation and planning
studies, evaluates and approves proposed highway,
bridge, transit and other projects, and monitors the
region’s compliance with national air quality goals. It
also provides a forum for cooperative transportation
planning efforts involving counties, municipalities,
stakeholders and government agencies. In
cooperation with its city and county member agencies
— known as “subregions” — the NJTPA sponsors
various transportation and planning studies and
assists county and city planning agencies.

1.2a Region Overview

Serving about 6.7 million people, the NJTPA is the
fifth-largest MPO in the nation. Its 4,200 square-mile
region encompasses a diverse geography of urban,

Key Planning Areas

Safety Planning
Ensure the reliability of infrastructure and use
educational campaigns to promote safety.

Transportation Technologies
Improve transportation safety, efficiency and
performance using information and
communications technology.

Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning
Promote bicycle and pedestrian planning
through investment, workshops, complete
streets initiatives, and pedestrian safety
programs.

Transit Planning

Conduct studies to improve transit and provide
technical assistance to help communities plan
for transit-oriented development.

Data Analysis, Models and Maps
Analyze data using simulations and geospatial
mapping to assess the performance of the
transportation system and predict future needs.

Climate Change Planning

Plan for mitigation of greenhouse gas emissions,
adaptation to cope with the consequences of a
changing climate, and resiliency so that the
transportation system can withstand extreme
weather and catastrophic events.

suburban and rural areas, as well as an ethnically and socioeconomically diverse population. The

region’s transportation network supports people traveling on road, rail, foot, bike and ferry, with each

household making 10 trips each day for all purposes. The NJTPA’s Plan 2045 provides a detailed look at

the region’s transportation system and demographics.




Figure 2

The NJTPA Subregions

The 13 counties and 2 major
cities that NJTPA serves are

called “subregions.” These are:

Bergen County
Essex County
Hudson County
Hunterdon County
Middlesex County
Monmouth County
Morris County
Ocean County
Passaic County
Somerset County
Sussex County
Union County

{ Warren
J

Warren County fean
Jersey City
Newark
|
Figure 3
NJTPA Board of Trustees

OO
OO -
@R ED -

I sl

City
Subregion

Morris

Transit
- hm:deu

[ v

Monmouth

1.2b Structure of the NJTPA

The NJTPA is governed by a Board of Trustees, which
has three standing committees, and is supported by a
central staff at the NJTPA offices in Newark.

Board of Trustees

The role of the Board of Trustees of the NJTPA
includes formulating policies, guiding investment
decisions, and helping to coordinate planning for all
aspects of regional transportation. The Board is made
up of elected officials representing 13 counties and
the cities of Newark and Jersey City. In addition, the
Board includes as voting members the New Jersey
Department of Transportation (NJDOT), NJ TRANSIT,
the Port Authority of NY & NJ, a Governor’s
representative, and a Governor-appointed citizens’
representative. See Appendix 1 for a list of current
Board members.

Many other interested agencies and organizations
provide input to the Board on a regular basis. The
Board and its committees meet regularly, and these
meetings are publicized and open to the public.

Committees of the Board
Members of the Board of Trustees are also
members of at least one of three standing
committees listed below. The standing committees
review potential NJTPA actions, discuss agency
activities and make recommendations to the full
Board of Trustees. Most meetings occur at the
NJTPA's offices in Newark. For a schedule of
meetings, check the calendar on the NJTPA website
(www.njtpa.org) or call 973-639-8400.

Planning & Economic Development

This committee oversees regional and
transportation corridor-based planning activities,
including the RTP. It reviews and approves funding

for plans, projects, and studies carried out by central staff and the subregions, including the Unified

Planning Work Program.



Project Prioritization

This committee oversees all activities related to the annual development and management of the
Transportation Improvement Program, including modifications and amendments. It also reviews and
approves funding for the NJTPA’s Local Safety, High Risk Rural Road and Local Capital Project Delivery
programs, among others.

Freight Initiatives

This committee supports the economically vital regional goods movement industry by making
recommendations on transportation investments and policies to ensure the region’s global
competitiveness.

Advisory Committees

The following committees serve an ongoing advisory function for the Board of Trustees. In addition,
temporary advisory committees are formed, as needed, for studies and projects, as discussed later in
this document.

Regional Transportation Advisory Committee

This advisory committee is composed of professional planners and engineers working in the NJTPA's
subregions. It reviews and disseminates information to the subregions and makes recommendations to
the NJTPA Board and its individual Trustees. It also provides input to central staff on the localized
impacts of NJTPA projects and programs.

Public Engagement Advisory Committee

The NJTPA plans to establish, on a pilot basis, an advisory committee to consult with NJTPA staff on
public engagement best practices to reach the diverse populations in the region, particularly those who
are historically under-represented. This pilot committee would review and evaluate public engagement
work plans for various NJTPA and subregional programs and projects. The NJTPA envisions this
committee consisting of representatives from community-based organizations, public engagement
professionals, and community organizers living or working in the NJTPA region. Meetings would occur
both in person and virtually using online tools and social media.

Our Generation Advisory Committee

The NJTPA plans to establish, on a pilot basis, an advisory committee to consider strategies for attracting
and retaining young adults and future generations within the NJTPA region and to provide input to
NJTPA staff on public engagement strategies, project prioritization, and other programs that affect this
group. This pilot committee will be composed of 10-20 young adults who live or work in the region.
Meetings would occur both in person and virtually using online tools and social media. This committee
was inspired by Set the Table, a young adults outreach effort that was completed as part of Plan 2045.

1.2¢ Central Staff

The NJTPA has a professional central staff of approximately 50 planners, economists, programmers,
policy analysts, engineers, communications and other support staff whose job it is to understand the
complexities of the region, not just in terms of transportation, but also air quality, economic
development, land use and the environment. Working at the NJTPA offices in Newark, they carry out the

5



activities described in Figure 1. The work of central staff helps to inform the decisions made by the
Board of Trustees.

1.2d Subregional Staff

Staff of the 13 county and city subregions help implement the goals and policies of the NJTPA at the
local level. Support for their planning work is provided by annual formula-based funding as part of the
Subregional Transportation Program and through competitive grants from the NJTPA such as the
Subregional Studies Program.



Chapter 2: Public Participation Mission and Goals

Because the NJTPA is a publicly funded agency serving the region’s residents, public participation is an
integral part of its transportation planning work. Public participation enables all residents of the region
to be involved in the important decision making processes that shape the region’s transportation
system.

Through the mission and goals stated here, the NJTPA seeks to create effective and meaningful
opportunities for the public to participate. This means fostering trusted, two-way communication
between the public and decision makers that includes the perspectives of many kinds of people.
Participation by a diverse and engaged public improves decision making by helping to illuminate many of
the social, economic, and environmental impacts of transportation decisions.

2.1 Principles & Goals

The NJTPA commits to the following principles with regards to public participation:

e To treat the public as partners in defining and refining a vision for northern and central New
Jersey'’s transportation future that will help create a more competitive, efficient, livable and
resilient region.

e To be the leader in engaging the public in a continuing discussion of northern and central New
Jersey transportation planning issues.

The following goals will help guide the NJTPA’s programs and transportation planning activities:

e Promote greater opportunities for the public to engage with the NJTPA Board members.

e Provide opportunities for meaningful two-way discussions between the NJTPA, its trustees and
the public about regional improvements.

e Use a range of tools that promote timely, innovative and informative two-way engagement
between the NJTPA and the public, both in person and online.

e Make continuous efforts to engage a diverse and wide-ranging representation of those who live,
work and travel within the region with an emphasis on reaching those traditionally under-
represented in the planning process.

e Evaluate, upgrade and adjust, on a periodic basis, the public participation efforts of the NJTPA.

e Continue to innovate and experiment with new ideas for engaging the public.

2.2 Overview of Federal Requirements for Public Participation

As described in Section 1.1, public participation is one of the core functions of any MPO. Many federal
regulations help to shape the process that MPOs use to involve the public. Please see Appendix 2 for
more detail about and web links to relevant legislation, which includes:

e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
e Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990
e Transportation Equity Act for the 21 Century (TEA-21) of 1998



e Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU)
of 2005

e Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21°t Century (MAP-21) of 2012

e Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act) of 2015

e Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23, §450

e Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23 §771.111

e Executive Order 12898, “Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations”

e Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency”

2.3 Public Participation for All

The NJTPA is committed to seeking input from those who have been historically under-represented in
transportation planning decisions. Federal legislation such as the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 have public participation requirements that MPOs must
implement to ensure access to the planning process for protected populations. To meet these
requirements, the NJTPA takes steps to include people with disabilities, minority and low-income
populations, and those with limited English proficiency (LEP) which are discussed throughout the PEP.

In accordance with the Federal Transit Administration Title VI circular, FTA C 4702.1B, the PEP serves as
the NJTPA’s outreach plan for minority and limited English proficient populations. In accordance with
Executive Order 12898 on Environmental Justice, the NJTPA has integrated environmental justice
concerns across all of its planning activities. This includes efforts to ensure that transportation benefits
and burdens are distributed equally among all people in the region, in part by making concerted efforts
to involve low-income and minority residents in transportation planning.

2.3a Using Targeted Strategies to Engage Historically Under-represented Populations
The NJTPA is committed to breaking down the barriers to participation that historically under-
represented groups face, which include language barriers, wariness of public forums, scheduling
constraints, and lack of transportation options, among other challenges.

In partnership with the Voorhees Transportation Center (VTC) at Rutgers University, the NJTPA studied
the role that innovative and targeted strategies can have in involving harder-to-reach and under-
represented populations. The NJTPA will draw on this research to ensure that its outreach is accessible
to everyone and will follow the best practices for reaching under-represented populations, as outlined
below, in alignment with the goals and objectives of the PEP. For more information about
recommended strategies for engaging these populations, visit the NJTPA website or see Chapter 5.

Children and Teens

While underage participants are often overlooked in the participation process, agencies are starting to
find ways to engage their youngest constituents. Children are not likely to engage with public issues
without strong encouragement from adults, but increasingly as they become teenagers they may begin
to identify what is important to them and look for ways to give back. Outreach to children and teens



should be fun, appealing, and easily accessible. They should not feel intimidated by adults. Outreach
may be most effective if done in partnership with schools and other child-oriented activities like youth
groups or sports leagues where they already congregate.

Immigrants and Individuals with Limited-English Proficiency
In New Jersey, 12.4 percent of the population reports speaking English less than “very wel

IM

Many
individuals understand more English than they are comfortable speaking, but still prefer to speak in their
native language, especially when discussing complex issues. Outreach to these residents should be
approachable, highly visual, and conducted in their language if feasible. The content of activities should
be easy to share with others through word-of-mouth and feel relevant to the needs of participants’
families. The NJTPA is committed to ensuring that all of its events and publications are accessible and
available to all residents regardless of their level of English proficiency or native language. Residents
and/or participants may request translation services for any NJTPA event or publication. For translation
services at events, the NJTPA requests seven days’ notice in order to make arrangements. Timing to
accommodate translation requests for written documents or reports will depend on the length and
complexity of the document.

Low-Income Residents

Many low-income people balance multiple jobs and face insecurity of housing, food, and transportation.
They are likely to receive information through word-of-mouth, social media, or community
organizations. Keeping these factors in mind, effective outreach to low-income constituents should be
convenient and incentivized. It should also be conducted by someone familiar with the community’s
character and strengths and involve partnerships with local organizations.

Young Adults

Young adults’ current lifestyle choices are helping drive urban resurgence and land use changes. They
are often under-represented in civic affairs due to inexperience, demands of balancing multiple jobs
with school and family, and limited opportunities. Outreach to young adults should be social and fun,
visually appealing and brief, and incorporate messaging on the appropriate social media platforms. It
should also address topics that feel relevant to their needs.

Older Adults

Older adults are often very involved in their communities and feel a strong sense of civic duty, voting at
the highest rates of any age group. In spite of this, older adults may be under-represented in planning
efforts because of mobility challenges, lack of relevance to their lives, or lack of awareness about issues
primarily promoted through the Internet. Outreach to older adults should be conducted in a variety of
formats, such as through word-of-mouth, regular mail, television, and social media platforms. To
overcome the mobility challenges older adults face, outreach should be scheduled during daylight hours,
held in ADA-accessible venues, and located close to home.

Racial and Ethnic Groups
Racial and ethnic minorities include people who do not identify racially as white and others, particularly
immigrants, who face limited opportunities to participate in civic affairs due to language barriers,



cultural differences and other factors. This may include Black, Latino, Asian, Middle Eastern, Native
American or multiracial populations. Minority communities are extremely diverse with a range of
communication styles and engagement levels. Outreach to these populations should be rooted in the
community, highlight the community’s strengths, be coordinated with local groups, and be relevant to
their family’s needs.

Individuals with Disabilities

Individuals with disabilities may experience any number of cognitive or physical disabilities. Because the
range of possible needs is so broad, agencies should be aware of the myriad of ways in which people
with special needs may be excluded from traditional public outreach, and how to correct for it. Outreach
to people with disabilities should be in compliance with ADA requirements and otherwise physically
welcoming and safe, visually and audibly accessible, and developmentally appropriate. Outreach staff
should be trained on how to provide assistance to disabled participants if it is needed.

2.3b  Public Outreach and Engagement Liaisons

The NJTPA plans to develop, on a pilot basis for a select study or project, Public Outreach and
Engagement Liaisons (POELs) who will work as bridge-builders, facilitating communication between the
NJTPA and communities, including those that have been traditionally under-represented in public
processes. The NJTPA ultimately envisions engaging and training POELs to work directly with multiple
communities to increase awareness of and participation in the region’s transportation planning
decisions among these populations.

Potential POELs will have diverse backgrounds, skill sets, and abilities enabling them to serve a variety of
functions. They will be able to expertly navigate the needs and preferences of a community, ensuring
that opportunities to participate with the NJTPA feel more accessible, comfortable and familiar for those
who might otherwise be left out. Furthermore, the training and skillset that POELs acquire may help
them transition into community leadership roles beyond the program.

Potential activities of POELs may include:

e Planning and facilitating outreach events in a native language

e Coordinating with local organizations to plan and host outreach events and leverage their
knowledge of the most effective ways to engage the community

e Providing quality translation services for informational materials, ensuring that they are
accurate and clearly convey the source material’s meaning

e Supporting constituents at NJTPA-sponsored or local events so that they feel welcome and
empowered to participate and ask questions

e Reporting residents’ feedback and concerns and connecting them to appropriate NJTPA
resources as needed

e Providing expertise on cultural concerns for public outreach work plans for NJTPA projects and
programs

10



Chapter 3: Opportunities to Engage with the NJTPA

There are a variety of opportunities for the public to engage with the NJTPA. The NJTPA disseminates
information and communicates through a variety of online and offline platforms in order to reach as
many people as possible. The public is also encouraged to attend meetings and events regarding
regional transportation planning, such as NJTPA Board of Trustees and committee meetings, meetings of
local or county transportation boards, and other events sponsored by the NJTPA and its subregions. The
NJTPA is committed to ensuring that people of all backgrounds and abilities feel comfortable
participating in these events and have access to the information they need to be involved in the region’s
transportation planning process.

3.1 Finding Information

The NJTPA seeks to make information about transportation planning in the region available and
accessible for anyone interested. It regularly disseminates news, updates, reminders about public
meetings and events, and other content through a variety of channels in order to reach a broad
audience. This includes:

3.1a NJTPA Website

The NJTPA’s website (njtpa.org) is designed to meet all federal and state accessibility criteria in a user-
friendly and interactive format. It provides information about all of the NJTPA’s work and planning
activities, including:

e Plans, studies, reports and other documents related to the regional and sub-regional
transportation planning process

e Information about the structure and composition of the NJTPA, including an introductory
Citizen’s Guide to the NJTPA and regional transportation planning

e Meeting agendas and minutes from meetings of the Board of Trustees and all standing and
advisory committees

e Contact information for central staff members, including an email address and telephone
number where members of the public can ask general questions and submit comments

o A calendar of upcoming meetings and events

e Public Engagement Toolkit with a database of resources for planning and executing public
involvement activities

e The NJTPA Update blog with highlights and updates from NJTPA activities occurring throughout
the region

e Transportation news from the NJTPA region and, when relevant, beyond

e Links to the NJTPA’s various social media platforms and YouTube channel

3.1b  E-list and Mail Lists

Members of the public and interested organizations can sign up through the NJTPA website for inclusion
on the NJTPA’s e-list to receive notice and agendas for upcoming meetings, special events, public
comment periods and other news and information via email. E-list subscribers can choose to only

11



receive emails about the topics that interest them. The NJTPA also maintains and uses other mailing lists
to reach member agencies, stakeholders, media and others.

When appropriate, the NJTPA will also use its mailing list to disseminate information to community
centers, libraries, senior centers, and English as a Second Language (ESL) centers.

Link: http://njtpa.org/get-involved/e-list-subscription

3.1c Social Media

The NJTPA actively maintains several social media accounts to highlight key agency events and
initiatives. The NJTPA uses social media platforms to inform members of the public and the media of
upcoming meetings and events, circulate news stories on transportation planning in the NJTPA region,
issue reminders about open public comment periods for major planning documents, and share the
activities of Board members and other content related to regional transportation planning.

The NJTPA does not consider comments made by members of the public on social media platforms to be
official public comment. More detail about the NJTPA’s policy is available in Appendix 3.

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/NJTPA

Twitter: https://twitter.com/NJTPA

Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/thenjtpa/

LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/company/north-jersey-transportation-planning-authority

Pinterest: https://www.pinterest.com/njtpa/

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/user/TheNJTPA

3.1d InTransition

InTransition is a semi-annual magazine, published and distributed in hard copy and online, offering
articles on transportation issues, research and trends. It is a collaboration between the NJTPA and the
New Jersey Institute of Technology (NJIT). InTransition offers information and analyses relevant to
researchers, policymakers, engineers, advocates, administrators, planners and others in the
transportation field, written in language accessible to a general reader. The magazine emphasizes
under-reported research, innovative approaches to addressing transportation problems and the
exchange of ideas between academic disciplines.

Link: http://www.intransitionmag.org/

3.1e Newspapers and Radio

The NJTPA, as appropriate, uses local newspapers, hyper-local news websites, and other traditional
media to publicize meetings, events, and other NJTPA projects and programs. Commercial radio public
service announcements have been used to publicize NJTPA programs such as the Street Smart NJ
pedestrian safety education campaign. The NJTPA also participates in television news interviews and

12


http://njtpa.org/get-involved/e-list-subscription
https://www.facebook.com/NJTPA?ref=sgm
https://twitter.com/NJTPA
https://www.instagram.com/thenjtpa/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/north-jersey-transportation-planning-authority
https://www.pinterest.com/njtpa/
https://www.youtube.com/user/TheNJTPA
http://www.intransitionmag.org/

special programs to spread the word about projects and programs, such as the Morris Canal Working
Group. Publicizing information through traditional media enables the NJTPA to reach those in the region
without access to the internet.

The NJTPA will expand efforts to involve local media in reporting major work programs such as the
Transportation Improvement Program, as well as subregional events and meetings, ranging from project
ribbon cuttings to local transportation meetings.

3.1f How to Request Data Resources and Public Documents

Public documents produced by the NJTPA are available upon request. Reasonable public access is
provided to NJTPA data and policy information. Fees to recover costs may be charged for data requests.
Interested parties can contact FOIA@nijtpa.org or 973-639-8400 to make a request.

Public documents are also reserved in designated State Documents Depository Libraries and other select
libraries throughout the region which keep major NJTPA documents on file. A complete list of these
libraries can be found in Appendix 4. The NJTPA also maintains a library of current and past public
documents that can be reviewed by the public during regular working hours.

The NJTPA complies with the federal Freedom of Information Act and the New Jersey Open Public
Recrods Act. Records requests should be submitted to the Custodian of Records at FOIA@njtpa.org. A
records request form is available on the NJTPA’s website.

3.2 Attending Meetings and Events

There are ongoing opportunities for residents and stakeholders to be involved in the NJTPA’s planning
process. Among these are the meetings of the Board of Trustees, meetings of standing and advisory
committees, and various public participation opportunities. One purpose of these meetings and events
is to present and discuss information, solicit feedback, or gather input from the public on specific topics
or plans. As discussed below, opportunities are provided at all meetings for the public to comment and
ask questions.

In January of each year, a schedule of NJTPA Board and committee meetings for the upcoming year is
posted on the NJTPA website and sent to e-list subscribers and contacts on other mailing lists. As
discussed below, notices are also issued prior to each meeting online and/or through traditional media.

3.2a Board of Trustees and Committee Meetings

Board and committee meetings are open to the public and Board meetings are livestreamed on the
NJTPA’s website and YouTube channel (the NJTPA also shares the livestream links on social media).
These meetings are often attended by planners, engineers, business and labor leaders, environmental
advocates, academics, commuter groups, concerned citizens, state and federal agency representatives,
neighboring MPOs, and media representatives, among others. The public is given the opportunity to
comment before any action at Board meetings and a public comment period on other matters is held at
the end of each meeting.

13


mailto:FOIA@njtpa.org
mailto:FOIA@njtpa.org
https://www.njtpa.org/about-njtpa/contact-us

Meetings are publicized through mailings, paid public notices, media advisories, social media posts and
the NJTPA website. A calendar of meetings, agendas and minutes from previous meetings are available
on the NJTPA website. Most meetings are held during the day at the NJTPA’s offices in Newark.

Agendas and materials distributed to the Board of Trustees for each meeting are posted on the NJTPA
website calendar prior to the meeting, and additional copies are available at the meeting. Minutes are
posted on the NJTPA website.

In accordance with the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, adequate notice of NJTPA Board meetings
is advertised in regional daily newspapers. The notice is also posted on the bulletin board of the
Secretary of State in Trenton and in the county clerk’s office of the county hosting the meeting.

Meeting Schedules

Most NJTPA Board and committee meetings occur at the NJTPA's offices in Newark and are generally
scheduled on a bi-monthly basis. To learn about upcoming meetings, check the calendar on the NJTPA
website or call 973-639-8400.

NJTPA Board Meeting Format
NJTPA Board meetings follow the general process below, which includes opportunities for public
comment:

e The Chair of the Board of Trustees leads the meetings, recognizing speakers, and managing the
flow of discussion.

e The publicis invited to comment on specific action items before they are voted on.

e At the discretion of the chair, members of the public also may be recognized to speak during
discussions of other agenda items.

e Agendas include a public-comment time, in which any member of the public will be able to
speak, present information or ask questions about any topic.

Normally, a sign-up sheet is provided to those wishing to provide public comment; three-minute time
limits are placed on the length of comments.

3.2b NJTPA-Sponsored Meetings

The NJTPA sponsors a variety of public engagement opportunities, convened and managed by NJTPA
central staff. The NJTPA central staff often participates in events hosted by subregional agencies. The
purpose of these activities is to provide information about the NJTPA’s work and gather information and
views from members of the public. Therefore, they are designed for as much interaction as possible
among all in attendance.

Workshops

NJTPA and subregional staff hold workshop-style meetings open to the public. These workshops allow
attendees to learn about plans, projects, or proposals in greater depth through the use of presentations,
display tables, posters, and other informational materials. Topics often include planning best practices

14



and technology used in planning and transportation. Workshops also enable one-on-one interactions
between staff, members of the public and subject matter experts.

General Information Sessions

NJTPA staff may conduct informational meetings at the NJTPA’s offices in Newark, which is a central
location for the region. Session topics include current activities, such as development of major planning
documents and updates on other ongoing programs, but also may include detailed presentations and
discussions about the results of studies and reports. The format generally consists of presentations by
program and project managers, followed by questions and answers. Staff is also available after the
presentations for individual follow-up discussion with attendees.

Forums/Symposiums

NJTPA staff collaborates with partner agencies and other organizations to convene regional forums on
important topics. Forums are focused on issues of interest to particular constituencies and generally
feature a panel of expert speakers with time for questions and answers; sometimes followed by
breakout sessions in which small groups of participants may have more intimate discussions. The
purpose is to foster communication and cooperation among diverse entities that deal with the issue
under discussion, and to look for new solutions to existing problems.

3.2c Subregion-Sponsored Meetings

All NJTPA subregions are required to actively involve the public in ongoing transportation planning and
decision making. A number hold regular transportation advisory committee meetings for this purpose.
Others conduct a variety of public meetings and events, including as part of NJTPA-supported study and
grant programs. Notice of these meetings is distributed locally by each subregion and posted by the
NJTPA on its website and social media outlets.

3.2d Other ways to be involved

Request a speaker for a community meeting

NJTPA staff are available to attend a regularly scheduled meeting of a community organization, school,
or library where they can make a presentation, answer questions, and gather comments about
transportation issues.

Attend meetings of county transportation boards or committees

Much of the transportation planning process occurs at local, county, and subregional levels. The public
can get involved by attending local meetings, such as those of county transportation committees or
municipal planning boards. The titles and responsibilities of these various committees and boards differ
from place to place. The NJTPA or county planning departments can provide contact information.

3.3 The NJTPA’s Commitment to Accessible Engagement

In accordance with federal laws, as well as with NJTPA policy and the goals stated in this plan, the NJTPA
seeks to ensure all interested members of the public are able to participate in transportation planning
decisions. Any person interested in attending an NJTPA hosted or sponsored event, or accessing

15



information from the NJTPA and any NJTPA-sponsored program or organization, can expect the
following accommodations to be made to the extent that resources allow:

e Materials developed to inform the public about NJTPA activities and

work products, such as presentations, posters, and pamphlets, . .
P P P pamp To request assistance in

include easy to understand language and visualization techniques. . .
accessing information

e Events are held in venues that are accessible and comfortable for .
or attending an event:
individuals with disabilities. Attendees can request additional
assistance or accommodation by contacting the NJTPA at least 7 Call 973-639-8400 (9:00
business days in advance of the event. a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
e As location permits, events are held in venues that are reachable via | weekdays)

public transportation. Board of Trustees and committee meetings

are generally held at the NJTPA’s offices in downtown Newark near
Penn Station, a major transit hub that provides bus, light rail, and train service.

e Individuals may submit comments via a recording or staff transcription of their spoken remarks
either before, during or after an event. The NJTPA also accepts comments by phone and e-mail
through the contacts listed in Figure 4.

e Upon request, accomodations may be made for the hearing impaired. Requests should be made
at least 7 business days prior to the event.

e Electronic content that is made available to the public through the NJTPA website conforms to
Section 508 standards which enhance the ability of individuals with disabilities to access and use
information.

e The NJTPA analyzes project areas to determine the need for translated informational materials
or language interpreters at events. If a large number of area residents speak a language other
than English, certain events may be conducted partially or entirely in that language to the extent
that resources allow. Refer to Appendix 6 for more information.

16


mailto:njtpa@njtpa.org

Chapter 4: Public Participation in the NJTPA’s Plans and Programs

The NJTPA’s work in the transportation planning process is ongoing. This includes developing the
federally mandated work products that are central to regional transportation planning, as well as other
regional and subregional programs and studies conducted as part of that process.

The public can keep up-to-date on opportunities for participating in decisions about these plans and
programs by connecting with the NJTPA via the methods described in Section 3.1. The NJTPA makes the
public aware of upcoming public comment periods, public meetings, and other outreach events.

Many of the plans, programs, and studies conducted or funded by the NJTPA are subject to specific
public participation requirements, some of which flow from federal regulations, while others are
particular to the NJTPA’s process. NJTPA staff monitor and review public outreach conducted by
subregional staff and consultant teams to ensure that outreach occurs consistently throughout the
region and upholds the mission and goals stated in this plan.

4.1 Formal Public Comment Periods

The NJTPA conducts formal 30-day public comment periods prior to the adoption of three key planning
documents: the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) as
well as the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), and the Air Quality Conformity
Determination document. These documents are described in the next section, “Key NJTPA Planning
Documents.” Formal comment periods are also held when these documents are significantly changed or
amended (for instance when adding or deleting projects, or in the event of a scope/schedule change
that would trigger a new conformity analysis). A financial threshold and other factors, as described in
Appendix 5, determine when a formal comment period is required for changing these planning
documents and how those comment periods are administered.

Formal public comment periods include the steps listed below to involve the public. However, the NJTPA
often goes above and beyond these minimum requirements in striving to use innovative and effective
outreach strategies that exceed federal requirements.

e Institute a 30-day comment period on the draft documents listed above during which written
comments can be submitted.

e Place notification in the legal section of regional daily newspapers. The notification will include
information on how to obtain copies of documents, any public meetings, workshops or forums
scheduled, the schedule for the public comment period, how to submit written comments and a
Central Staff contact for additional information.

e Place notification on the NJTPA’s website and social media platforms with an option for
submitting comments via e-mail.

e Provide notification to a listing of representative interest groups, stakeholders, and agencies in
the region.

e Post documents on the agency’s website.

17



e Distribute documents to select State Documents Depository Libraries and other libraries
throughout the region. These libraries are listed in Appendix 4.

e A summary of oral and written comments received during the course of the above procedures
are furnished, with responses and Central Staff summaries, to the voting members of the NJTPA
Board of Trustees prior to their taking action to finalize the work product. The complete
comments and staff summaries with responses are made available to the public upon request
and posted on the NJTPA website.

o If afinal major work product differs significantly from the one made available for public
comment by the NJTPA, an additional opportunity for public comment is provided. A summary
report including the disposition of significant comments is made part of the final document. This
report will include documentation of any direct impact of public comments and other public
participation activities on the planning process and the final product.

e All documents are on file and available for public review during regular office hours at the NJTPA
offices.

KEY NJTPA PLANNING DOCUMENTS

The NJTPA’s role as Metropolitan Planning Organization includes the preparation and updating of
the following documents as required by federal law. These documents maintain the region’s
eligibility to receive federal transportation funding:

Regional Transportation Plan

In order to receive federal funding, a transportation project must be listed in the RTP. In updating
the RTP every four years, as required, NJTPA staff assess data, demographics, and trends to forecast
the region’s transportation needs over the next 25 years and develop a list of transportation
projects and strategies to improve regional mobility and meet other goals. The Board of Trustees
votes to approve the RTP.

Because it is a foundational planning document for the region, outreach activities for the RTP are
opportunities for the public to get involved on the ground floor of the planning process. The NJTPA
uses a variety of innovative strategies as described in this PEP to engage the public in preparation of
the updated RTP.

Transportation Improvement Program

The Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) is a four-year, fiscally constrained agenda of
prioritized transportation improvement projects drawn from the RTP. The TIP also contains six years
of “unconstrained” project information; the state produces a 10-year capital program). Essentially,
the TIP functions as the short-term element of the RTP. It includes a detailed funding schedule and
information onfor an information on a wide range of road, bridge, rail, bicycle/pedestrian and other
surface transportation projects. To be eligible for federal funds, projects must be included in the TIP.
The TIP is updated every two years to reflect funding and project prioritization decisions, and it may
be modified or amended as needed.

18



Air Quality Conformity Determination

Regions such as the NJTPA’s, parts of which have been designated as in “non-attainment” of federal
air quality standards, are required under federal law to take special steps to reduce pollutants. At a
minimum of every two years, the NJTPA demonstrates that the projects it approves through its TIP
and RTP collectively do not have an adverse impact on the region’s air quality and support the air
quality goals in the New Jersey State Implementation Plan (SIP) to meet and maintain the National
Ambient Air Quality Standards.

To demonstrate TIP/SIP “conformity,” the NJTPA uses computer modeling to estimate the emissions
impact of approved projects. The Conformity Determination is performed at least every two years in
conjunction with development of the TIP. A new Conformity Determination may be required when
the RTP or TIP is amended, depending on the exact nature of the change.

Unified Planning Work Program

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) describes all transportation and related planning
activities to be conducted by the NJTPA’s central staff, member agencies and other transportation
agencies in the region. The document outlines the transportation planning studies and activities that
will support the TIP and the RTP. It covers a two-year period, and is updated annually. Drafts of
proposed updates to the UPWP are released to the public each fall and discussed at NJTPA
committee meetings, offering many opportunities for public input.

One volume of the UPWP is the Study and Development Program. This program guides work to
explore project needs and often involves exploring alternative conceptual designs and routes. Other
volumes of the UPWP cover work conducted by NJTPA subregions, Transportation Management
Associations (TMAs) and other transportation agencies around the region.

4.2  Participation in Together North Jersey

The NJTPA plays an ongoing role in leading Together North Jersey, a coalition of nearly 100 diverse
partners — non-profits, government agencies, educational institutions, businesses, elected officials,
community activists and others — who work together to improve opportunities for residents and
businesses in the NJTPA region.

After collecting extensive public input, Together North Jersey in 2015 released the region’s first-ever
comprehensive plan that seeks to make the region more competitive, efficient, livable and resilient. The
recommendations and strategies in TNJ plan are a source of guidance and insight for the NJTPA’s
planning and programming.

Any resident of the NJTPA region can join Together North Jersey. Members work together to discuss,
develop, and facilitate the actions that are outlined in the TNJ Plan and participate in the following
activities:

19



4.2a Task Force Meetings

Together North Jersey has established four task forces that shepherd and guide the implementation of
the goals and strategies identified in the Together North Jersey Plan. There is one task force for each key
vision theme:

e Competitive
e Resilient

e Livable

e Efficient

The four task forces meet approximately four times per year. Meeting locations include the NJTPA
offices and Rutgers University campuses in New Brunswick and Newark. When a task force identifies a
specific topic that warrants dedicated action or enquiry, several members are appointed to a
subcommittee that may work together more frequently.

4.2b Together North Jersey Institute

Together North Jersey members are also involved in the Together North Jersey Institute (TNJ Institute),
which sponsors a series of technical assistance and training activities designed to enhance the capacity
of counties, municipalities, nonprofits and others within the region. The TNJ Institute’s purpose is to
advance implementation of the Together North Jersey Plan by disseminating the necessary training and
knowledge to those wishing to act on the plan’s recommended strategies. The NJTPA distributes
information about TNJ Institute opportunities through its social media channels and email lists.

4.3  Participation in Regional and Subregional Programs

The NJTPA oversees a variety of programs that study and address mobility needs identified in the RTP.
These transportation planning activities are carried out by the NJTPA’s central staff and staff of the 15
subregions and eight statewide Transportation Management Associations (TMAs). Consultants are often
retained to assist in these activities. The NJTPA will work with the subregions and TMAs to seek
opportunities for greater public participation at the subregional level.

Subregional transportation planning activities — funded in all or in part by the NJTPA, including major
projects or studies — must include opportunities for the public to be involved. The adequacy of plans for
public engagement will be among the criteria evaluated by the NJTPA in awarding competitive funding.
Funds disbursed to the subregions on a formula basis through the NJTPA’s annual Subregional
Transportation Planning Program should be used to encourage local public involvement and input into
transportation planning activities. Stakeholders, other subregional and agency staff and local officials
should be included.

To achieve meaningful public participation, each subregion must have in place a mechanism or forum
for the open exchange of views and information. In particular, the subregions should facilitate public
outreach on a wide range of issues, including transportation needs, projects, safety concerns and
coordinated land use and transportation studies. Some examples are:

e transportation committees

20



e special outreach efforts

e community support through the media

e |aw enforcement groups

e business groups

e chambers of commerce and other civic organizations
e public relations efforts

When subregional staff or consultants develop outreach procedures or a public participation plan for a
project, they should use the guidance and resources provided in Chapter 5 and on the NJTPA website.
Use of this guidance ensures that opportunities for public participation at the subregional level are
effective, appropriate, and responsive to the needs of the local population. NJTPA staff will review
outreach efforts in the subregions, including project-specific public participation plans, as needed to
ensure that they are in keeping with the mission and goals stated in this plan.

To augment these efforts, NJTPA central staff will coordinate with the subregions and municipal
governments regarding meetings for NJTPA corridor studies or major work products, and central staff
will be available for meetings throughout the region as appropriate. The NJTPA will also promote the
role of Trustees at subregional meetings, area-specific corridor studies and other project-specific
studies. For corridor-specific projects, as appropriate, the NJTPA will also seek to meet with elected
officials, including municipal representatives and members of the State Legislature, to understand their
constituent concerns and get their input into the planning process.

The following sections describe the NJTPA’s key regional and subregional programs and studies:

4.3a Regional Studies

The NJTPA conducts a variety of studies focused on transportation issues identified in the RTP. From the
adequacy of freight facilities to promising applications of new traffic control technologies to forecasts of
future trends and conditions, the studies explore issues that affect the entire NJTPA region.

4.3b Subregional Studies Program

This is a competitive program that provides two-year grants to individual subregions or subregional
teams. The program is designed to assist subregions in refining and developing transportation
improvement strategies rooted in the RTP.

4.3c Subregional Transportation Planning Program

This program provides formula-based funding to each subregion for essential transportation planning,
programming and administrative activities that support programs and projects identified in the RTP and
UPWP. These activities include collecting data, analyzing project needs and facilitating public
participation.

4.3d Transportation Management Associations
The NJTPA oversees all eight transportation management associations (TMAs) in the State of New
Jersey, including those outside the NJTPA region. The TMAs work with employers and the public sector

21



to help provide effective and efficient commuting and other transportation options. The NJTPA oversees
the development of annual TMA work programs and coordinates activities among the TMAs, the
subregions, NJ TRANSIT, NJDOT and other partners in regional mobility.

4.3e Street Smart NJ

Street Smart NJ is a statewide pedestrian safety education campaign coordinated by the NJTPA. The
campaign uses education and enforcement to change motorist and pedestrian behavior to reduce the
incidence of crashes. With support from the NJTPA, TMAs and the NJTPA subregions, dozens of
municipalities have initiated local campaigns. The NJTPA and its partners are actively seeking to expand
to other communities. During each local effort, campaign organizers seek active public input and
participation. There is also extensive social media promotion for each campaign. Further information is
available at BeStreetSmartNJ.org. Interested communities should reach out to the NJTPA to discuss
possible campaigns.

4.4  Participation in Capital Programming and Local Projects

Much of the NJTPA’s transportation planning focuses on identifying location-specific mobility needs and
strategies to address them. The NJTPA’s local programs support the work of the subregions in
developing plans for local projects so that they can be included in the TIP and receive funding.

Subregional staff and consultants should ensure that public involvement is a component of the
development and execution of these projects by using the guidance and resources provided in Chapter
5. As needed, NJTPA Communications and Government Affairs staff will review opportunities for public
participation in local projects to ensure that they align with the mission and goals stated in this plan. In
addition, when awarding projects through competitive funding programs such as those listed below, the
NJTPA will review whether a project proposal includes a strong public involvement component aimed at
ensuring participation from under-represented populations.

The following programs award funds for local projects:

4.4a Local Capital Project Delivery Program

This competitive program provides funding to NJTPA subregions to prepare proposed transportation
projects for eventual construction. The subregions identify problems and needs and develop projects
through the various phases of this program.

4.4b Local Safety and High Risk Rural Roads Programs

These competitive programs provide funds to the subregions for high-impact safety improvements on
local facilities. They range from pedestrian improvements in New Jersey’s largest cities to skid-
prevention treatments on winding country roads.

22



Chapter 5: Public Engagement Best Practices and Resources

Effective public engagement takes careful planning. NJTPA project and program managers should
coordinate with NJTPA Communications staff on their public outreach plans to ensure they align with
the goals of this Plan. This section of the guide should be used when a program or project is initiated to
ensure that the public is involved in a meaningful way. It applies to all NJTPA-funded activities, including
those undertaken by subregional staff, TMAs and consultants. This section also provides the public with
insight into the NJTPA’s considerations when planning for public engagement.

5.1 Overview of the Public Engagement Toolkit

Drawing from a multi-year research effort conducted in partnership with Rutgers University, the NJTPA
has developed a Public Engagement Toolkit to easily connect practitioners with the best practices in
planning and implementing engagement. Available on the NJTPA’s website at www.NJTPA.org/Engage,

the Public Engagement Toolkit includes:

e a comprehensive database of hundreds of tools and techniques

e worksheets to guide the user through planning and executing different phases of
engagement

e factsheets on innovative engagement strategies with insights into and examples of their use

e reports on feedback received from eight focus groups, each representative of a different
population, on effective outreach strategies and messaging

e reports from interviews conducted with the practitioners of innovative outreach projects and
programs

The Toolkit can be used by any person looking for guidance in designing and implementing a public
engagement plan. Central staff, subregional staff, and consultants should consult the Toolkit when
forming NJTPA-funded project- and program-specific public engagement plans. The process of creating a
plan is detailed in the following section.

5.2  Using the Toolkit to Develop a Public Participation Plan

A public participation plan ensures the needs of the affected population are considered in the
development and execution of a project or program. The public participation plan identifies the desired
objectives for public participation, the key populations and stakeholders in the project area, appropriate
strategies to achieve the desired objective, how follow-up with participants will occur, and success
measures for each outreach tool.

The following sections describe the steps of developing a public participation plan utilizing the resources
available through the Toolkit. While this section provides a general overview of how to develop a plan,
practitioners can turn to the Toolkit for more detailed guidance on each stage of writing and
implementing a public participation plan.

23


http://www.njtpa.org/Engage

5.2a Identify the Objective

Successful engagement begins when the project team clearly understands the desired goal of the
engagement they will conduct. A well-defined objective is crucial because it will guide the development
of other components of the plan, such as identifying appropriate engagement tools and activities. In
addition, if engagement objectives are not clearly defined, the public may have difficulty understanding
the purpose and expected outcomes of the activities they are participating in.

Figure 5

e

g
IAP2 Spectrum m
of Public Participation e

Increasing Level of Public Impact

Inform Consult Involve Collaborate Empower
. To provide the To obtain public To work directly To partner with To place final
Public public with feedback on with the public the public in each  decision-making
pc:rﬁcipmion balanced and analysis, throughout aspect of the in the hands of

q()gl F"’.JL‘U“"C iﬂlt"'mtﬂ'cs_ the process to _ decision including  the public.
s information and/or decisions. ensure that public  the development

to assist them in concerns and of alternatives and

understanding the aspirations are the identification

problem, consistently of the preferred

alternatives, understood and solution.

opportunities considered.

and/for solutions,

Source: International Association for Public Participation

The International Association for Public Participation (IAP2) has developed the widely-used “Spectrum of
Public Participation,” shown in Figure 5, that can help to frame the objective of an engagement plan. On
the far end of the participation spectrum (collaborate, empower) the public has a more direct role in
decision-making. These levels are typically used when the affected population is limited in number. The
near end of the participation spectrum (inform, consult) reflects the participation levels most often seen
in public processes. A project may incorporate multiple levels of public participation to achieve a
community-supported outcome.

5.2b Identify Participants and Understand Demographics

Another important component of a public participation plan is to take a close look at the characteristics
of the population within the project area and, as appropriate, those traveling to and/or through the
area. Accurately defining the population’s demographic and cultural makeup, as well as special interests,
is crucial for identifying what outreach strategies will be most effective. It is often useful to reference
U.S. Census data and other resources that provide detailed information about the population in a given

24



area. If a project area includes people from historically under-represented groups, such as those with
limited English proficiency or low incomes, then a more targeted outreach approach may be warranted.

5.2c Identify Tools and Techniques

The NJTPA has compiled, categorized and documented hundreds of engagement methods, from
informational pamphlets to mobile outreach booths and online surveys to civic dinner parties. Many of
these tools can be adapted to the needs of specific populations. Choose tools that correspond to the
desired objectives of the engagement and that are best suited to the participants they are meant to
engage. Especially, consider choosing tools that will make participation more accessible, convenient, or
comfortable for individuals from historically under-represented groups.

Depending on the level of participation (as determined by using the IAP2 Spectrum) and the key
audiences identified within the project area, it may be important to consider multiple engagement
techniques or tools. If resources allow, develop special strategies that are specifically targeted to
engaging people from under-represented groups, as this can be the most effective way to assure their
participation.

5.2d Implement the Plan

Establish a clear timeline of engagement activities and determine who is responsible for carrying them
out. This will necessitate coordinating with other parties to ensure outreach activities are well-executed
and accessible to all participants. Important aspects to consider include: securing an appropriate and
accessible venue, creating a comprehensive supplies list, planning the day’s logistics, determining
availability of technology resources (if needed), and ensuring that all those who plan to participate can
do so. The project team should consult with participating community groups and leaders to ensure that
these choices align with the needs and preferences of the activity’s audience.

5.2e Demonstrate Results

Participants want to know what happens to the input they give. The feedback gathered during the
engagement process can be compiled in an easy-to-read public comment report. The report should
summarize the information that was shared with decision makers and describe how public feedback
influenced outcomes.

Members of the public who have participated in conversations surrounding issues that remain
unchanged may become discouraged and less likely to participate in the future. To minimize this, set
clear expectations about how input will affect decision-making and, wherever possible, demonstrate
how input was used.

5.2f Evaluate

In order to identify issues, measure success and adjust plans accordingly, it is important to monitor and
evaluate a project throughout the entire process. To gauge how participants felt about the way they
were engaged, consider adding a question at the end of an online survey or event comment form that
asks for suggestions to improve the process. This knowledge can be used to guide how a method or
technique will be used in the future.

25



26



Appendices

Appendix 1 — Board of Trustees (2018)

e Angel Estrada, Chair, Freeholder, Union County

e Matthew Holt, First Vice-Chair, Freeholder, Hunterdon County

e John W. Bartlett, Second Vice-Chair, Freeholder, Passaic County

e Kathryn A. DeFillippo, Third Vice-Chair, Freeholder, Morris County
e Joseph DiVincenzo, Secretary, County Executive, Essex County

e James J. Tedesco lll, County Executive, Bergen County

e Thomas DeGise, County Executive, Hudson County

e Steven M. Fulop, Mayor, City of Jersey City

e Charles Kenny, Freeholder, Middlesex County

e Thomas A. Arnone, Freeholder, Monmouth County

e Ras J. Baraka, Mayor, City of Newark

e John P. Kelly, Freeholder, Ocean County

e Mark Caliguire, Freeholder, Somerset County

e Carl Lazzaro, Freeholder, Sussex County

e Jason Sarnoski, Freeholder, Warren County

e Diane Gutierrez-Scaccetti, Commissioner, New Jersey Department of Transportation
e Kevin Corbett, Executive Director, NJ TRANSIT

e Kevin O'Toole, Chairman, Port Authority of New York & New Jersey
e Brian T. Wilton, Deputy Chief Counsel, Governor's Authorities Unit
e Jamie LeFrak, Citizens' Representative

Appendix 2 — Legislation Regarding Public Participation in Transportation Planning

Processes

Several important pieces of federal legislation mandate that MPOs, states, or federal agencies seek
public involvement in transportation decision-making and seek to engage underserved populations.
Forming the foundation of most public participation requirements for public agencies are two principal
laws: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which addresses rights of people based on race, color, or
national origin, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which addresses the rights of people

with disabilities. Both laws prohibit discrimination against protected groups by any programs and
agencies receiving federal funding.

MPOs Must Seek Public Input

The current public participation requirements for MPOs come from the 2015 Fixing America’s Surface
Transportation (FAST) Act, the most recent surface transportation legislation. FTA summarizes these
requirements as follows: “a metropolitan planning organization (MPO) is required to engage in a
metropolitan planning process that creates opportunities for public involvement, participation, and
consultation,” including throughout the development of its long-range Regional Transportation Plan
(RTP) and its Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Under this requirement, “MPQOs must allow

27


https://www.justice.gov/crt/fcs/TitleVI-Overview
https://www.ada.gov/2010_regs.htm

for: adequate public notice of public participation activities; review and comment at key decision points
in the development of the [RTP] and TIP; and multiple, accessible participation formats, including
electronic and in-person.”

To this end, MPOs are required to “develop a collaborative and comprehensive Public Participation Plan,
in full collaboration with the public and stakeholder communities, to be used in the development of the
[RTP] and TIP, as well as to frame the strategies for public and stakeholder communication and
collaboration in all phases of the planning process. The Participation Plan itself must be prepared by the
MPO with a 45-day public review and comment period.” Further, in addition to holding public meetings
that are accessible and convenient to the public, with adequate public notice and with information
available online, MPOs also are required to solicit the needs of traditionally underserved populations
and seriously consider the public input it receives.

Carrying forward mandates from previous laws, the FAST Act requires that when developing a program
the MPOQ, in cooperation with the state, should “provide citizens, affected public agencies...
representatives of users of public transit, and other interested parties with a reasonable opportunity to
comment on the proposed program.” States should do the same when developing a long-range
transportation plan.

It also requires that public meetings must be accessible and convenient for the public, include adequate
notice, and have information available online. The agency must also solicit the needs of traditionally
underserved populations and seriously consider the public input it receives.

Regulations implementing federal laws specify further requirements. The Code of Federal Regulations,

Title 23, §450 provides planning standards for transportation projects. §450.316 states that MPOs must
have plans for engaging the public, agencies, and other transportation stakeholders. The document
should address the MPQ'’s strategies for providing notice of hearings, making hearings convenient to
attend, receiving public feedback, and reaching populations “traditionally underserved by existing
transportation systems.”

All states receiving federal highway funding must, under the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23
§771.111, provide “early and continuing opportunities” to give the public an opportunity to identify
potential social, economic, and environmental impacts of the proposed project. A public hearing must

be held when a project receiving federal aid will: result in certain changes to roadway layouts or
functions, negatively affect abutting property, and cause significant environmental, social, and economic
effects. The hearing must be given with reasonable notice and must explain the project’s purpose,
potential alternatives, and anticipated impacts, as well as the proposing agency’s procedures for
receiving public comment.

Federal Agencies Must Reach Out to Minority Populations
Executive Order 12898, “Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and

Low-Income Populations,” specifies the obligations of federal agencies (including federally funded
MPOs) to examine the health and environmental effects of their proposed programs on minority and
underserved populations. Each agency should ensure that communications related to the environment

28


http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr;sid=e2662fc63c225d496d1fa6ce22ea6cb8;rgn=div5;view=text;node=23%3A1.0.1.5.11;idno=23;cc=ecfr#se23.1.450_1316
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr;sid=e2662fc63c225d496d1fa6ce22ea6cb8;rgn=div5;view=text;node=23%3A1.0.1.5.11;idno=23;cc=ecfr#se23.1.450_1316
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=51295ac6d656d8ca83ac5933bdaccddc&mc=true&node=pt23.1.771&rgn=div5
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=51295ac6d656d8ca83ac5933bdaccddc&mc=true&node=pt23.1.771&rgn=div5
http://www.archives.gov/federal-register/executive-orders/pdf/12898.pdf

or public health are “concise, understandable, and readily accessible to the public” and translated into
other languages “whenever practicable and appropriate.”

Federal Agencies Must Engage LEP Individuals
Executive Order 13166 addresses engagement of Limited English Proficiency (LEP) individuals: “Each

Federal agency shall prepare a plan to improve access to its federally conducted programs and activities
by eligible LEP persons.” The Order allows agencies significant freedom in crafting their own plans, but
provides some more specific guidance in its policy guidance document, “Guidance to Federal Financial
Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition against National Origin Discrimination Affecting
Limited English Proficient Persons.”

Appendix 3 — Social Media Comment Policy

The NJTPA’s social media channels provide an opportunity for sharing and discussing information about
the NJTPA, regional transportation planning, and related programs and activities. Comments and
opinions expressed by users of social media platforms including Facebook, Twitter and YouTube are
theirs alone and do not reflect the opinions of the NJTPA or its employees. All public comments made on
social media pages managed by the NJTPA and the staff of NJTPA-sponsored programs, including
consultants and grant recipients, must be reviewed and screened in accordance with the NJTPA social
media use policy below. The NJTPA encourages members of the public to submit their questions,
comments, and concerns, but please note that all NJTPA social media channels are moderated online
discussion sites, not a public forum.

External User Guidelines

1. The NJTPA does not allow graphic, obscene, explicit, racial or otherwise discriminatory
comments or submissions, nor do we allow comments that are abusive, hateful or intended to
defame anyone or any organization.

2. The NJTPA does not allow solicitations or advertisements. This includes promotion or
endorsement of any financial, commercial or non-governmental agency. Similarly, the NJTPA
does not allow attempts to defame or defraud any financial, commercial or non-governmental
agency.

3. The NJTPA does not allow comments that suggest or encourage illegal activity.

4. NJTPA social media channels are not open to comments promoting or opposing any person
campaigning for election to a political office or promoting or opposing any ballot proposition.

5. All NJTPA social media authors and public commentators must be clearly identified. Anonymous
postings are not allowed. Personal responsibility for comments is assumed, according to
username and any information provided.

6. The NJTPA reviews all comments and reserves the right to discard messages containing
inappropriate content.

7. Appearance of external links does not constitute any official endorsement on behalf of the
NJTPA.

29


http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2000-08-16/pdf/00-20938.pdf

Comments will not be edited by the NJTPA. However, comments that do not comply with the NJTPA’s
use policy will be removed. The use of vulgar, offensive, defamatory (personal attacks), threatening or
harassing language is prohibited, and comments or user accounts therein are subject to removal.

Public comments on NJTPA-generated content should be limited to comments related to the posted
topic. NJTPA social media channels are not the proper place to express opinions or beliefs not related to
subjects/areas in which the NJTPA conducts its business (i.e., transportation policies and programs).

The NJTPA encourages comments on content shared via our social media channels, as all viewpoints are
welcome, but citizen participation must be constructive. If comments left on our social media postings
are constructive, the NJTPA views those posts as an opportunity to engage, discuss, clear up
misunderstandings, or otherwise work through whatever issues are presented. The NJTPA reserves the
right to make editorial decisions regarding submitted comments, including but not limited to removal of
comments.

The NJTPA responds to comments and messages on social media within 24 hours of receipt during a
standard business week. The NJTPA also closely monitors our public email account, njitpa@njtpa.org,

and quickly responds to emails from members of the public.

Communications made through e-mail and messaging systems within social media channels will in no
way constitute a legal or official notice or comment to the NJTPA (or any official or employee of the
NJTPA) for any purpose. For example, a post, comment, Tweet, or Facebook message that asks the
NJTPA to provide public records will not be considered a public records request until being sent through
the proper channels.

Comments on NJTPA plans and work programs to be entered into the public record must be submitted
through the formal commenting process. The NJTPA does not consider comments made on social media
platforms to be official public comment, though a summary of such comments may be included when
the NJTPA reports on the public comments it received on a major work product.

As social media is a fast-evolving means of public interface, this policy statement is subject to
amendment or modification at any time to ensure its continued use is consistent with its intended
purpose as a limited forum. Questions or concerns regarding the NJTPA’s presence in various social
media channels should be directed to Melissa Hayes at mhayes@njtpa.org or 973-639-8438.

Appendix 4 — List of NJTPA Public Documents Depository Libraries
e Bloomfield Public Library
e East Brunswick Public Library
e East Orange Public Library
e Elizabeth Free Public Library
e Hunterdon County Library
e Jersey City Public Library
e Johnson Free Public Library

30


mailto:njtpa@njtpa.org
mailto:mhayes@njtpa.org

e Linden Free Public Library

e  Monmouth County Library

e Morris County Library

e Newark Public Library

e North County Branch Library
e QOcean County Library

e Paterson Free Public Library
e  Phillipsburg Public Library

e Plainfield Free Public Library
e Ridgewood Public Library

e Somerset County Library

e Sussex County Library System
e Warren County Library

e Wayne Public Library

e Woodbridge Public Library

Appendix 5 — Amendments to the RTP or TIP

Major TIP Amendments and Amendments to the RTP

An amendment to the RTP is required when a project is added or deleted or there is a major change in
policy contained in the document. An amendment to the TIP is required when a project is added or
deleted, or there is a major change in the project’s scope. Public participation for an amendment to the
RTP or TIP (except in the case of minor TIP Amendments, see below) will include the following steps:

e Institute a 30-day comment period on the draft amendment during which the public can submit
written comments;

e Place notification of the proposed action in the legal section of the regional daily newspapers.
Notification will include information on the public comment period, how to access relevant
information on the NJTPA website, how to submit comments and an agency contact for
additional information.

e Place notification of the comment period on the NJTPA website with an option for submitting
comments via e-mail.

e Provide similar notification to interest groups in the region as appropriate. For amendments
involving location-specific projects/studies, the mayors of affected municipalities will receive
notification as well.

e Distribute the document under consideration to the NJTPA’s designated libraries (Appendix 4).

e A summary of oral and written comments received during the course of the above procedures
shall be furnished, with responses and staff summaries, to the voting members of the NJTPA
Board of Trustees prior to their action. The complete comments and staff summaries with
responses will be made available to the public upon request.

31



Minor TIP Amendments

A minor TIP amendment, which also must be approved by the NJTPA Board of Trustees, occurs when a
change to the TIP does not affect air quality conformity and does not require a new regional conformity
determination. This includes the following circumstances:

e Addition of a new project or program that uses federal funds or unobligated prior year balances;

e Deletion of a project or program that uses federal funds in its entirety;

e Addition of a development phase to a project that results in moving all major phases of work out
of the TIP;

e Change of funding source for a project in the TIP from the use of non-federal funds to the use of
federal funds;

e Exchange of FHWA or FTA funds for a commensurate amount of non-federal funding between
the NJDOT and NJ TRANSIT; or

e Costincrease of more than $15,000,000 to any phase of work of a project.

Public participation procedures for minor TIP Amendments include:

e Proposed minor TIP Amendments will be listed on the agenda for meetings of the NJTPA Project
Prioritization Committee, which are open to the public and advertised per New Jersey’s Open
Public Meetings Act. The committee meeting agendas and supporting documentation will be
made available for public review on the NJTPA website, and notification of online availability will
be sent to the NJTPA’s public electronic mailing list (“e-list”).

e Following review and if recommended for approval by the Project Prioritization Committee,
proposed minor TIP Amendments will be listed on the agenda for meetings of the NJTPA Board
of Trustees, which also are open to the public and advertised per New Jersey’s Open Public
Meetings Act. Agendas and supporting documentation will be made available for public review
on the NJTPA website, and notification of online availability will be sent to the NJTPA’s e-list.

o At meetings of the NJTPA Board of Trustees, the public will be provided with an opportunity to
comment on proposed minor TIP Amendments prior to action being taken by the Board.

Appendix 6 — Determining Translation Needs

As part of compliance with Executive Order 13166, the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)
outlined steps that DOT funding recipients should take to assess language needs and ensure meaningful
access for LEP individuals. The following four-factor analysis can be used to determine translation needs:

e The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by a
program, activity, or service of the recipient or grantee.

e The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program.

e The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient to
people's lives.

e The resources available to the recipient and costs.

32



More information about the U.S. DOT’s LEP guidance is available at:
https://www.transportation.gov/civil-rights/civil-rights-awareness-enforcement/dots-lep-guidance

33


https://www.transportation.gov/civil-rights/civil-rights-awareness-enforcement/dots-lep-guidance

Novemberl9, 2018- AttachmentG.3


beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text
November 19, 2018 - Attachment G.3. 

beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text


AttachmeniG.3.a

DRAFT RESOLUTION: SUPPORT FOR 2019 SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURE
TARGETS SET BY THE NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION IN COLLABORATION WITH THE
NJTPA AND OTHER METROPOLITAN PLANNING
ORGANIZATIONS IN NEW JERSEY

WHEREAS, the North Jersey Transportation Planning Authority, Inc. (NJTPA) has been
designated by the Governor of New Jersey as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for
the northern New Jersey region; and

WHEREAS, Title 23, Section 134 of the United States Code requires that each MPO
undertake a transportation planning process that shall provide for the establishment and use of a
performance-based approach to transportation decision-making to support national goals; and
that each MPO shall establish performance targets that address the performance measures to use
in tracking progress toward attainment of critical outcomes for the region and integrate those
targets into their planning documents and processes; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) published the final rule,
(23 CFR Part 490), on the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) on April 14, 2016,
requiring the New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT) to annually develop and adopt
targets assessing number of motor vehicle crash-related serious injuries and fatalities; serious
injuries and fatalities per vehicle miles traveled (VMT); and number of serious injuries and
fatalities of non-motorized users; and

WHEREAS, on May 27, 2016 the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) issued a
final rule on metropolitan planning (23 CFR 450 & 771 and 49 CFR 613), under which MPOs
must adopt safety targets by February 27, 2018 and each year thereafter; and

WHEREAS, the final rule also requires that MPOs coordinate with NJDOT to set
performance targets for the specified measures and integrate those targets into their planning
documents and processes; and

WHEREAS, the NJTPA coordinated with NJDOT, the New Jersey Division of
Highway Traffic Safety, and the other MPOs in New Jersey on analyzing trends and developing
appropriate safety targets; and

WHEREAS, the final rule on metropolitan planning states that MPOs have the option to
(1) agree to program investments in support of NJDOT’s targets, or (2) set their own
quantifiable targets; and

WHEREAS, the statewide targets appropriately reflect and will serve as suitable
benchmarks for the planning goals and desired outcomes for the projects and programs of the
NJTPA Regional Transportation Plan and TIP; and

WHEREAS, no action authorized by the NJTPA shall have force or effect until ten
(10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes of the
meeting of the Board of Trustees has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior


beverly
Typewritten Text

beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.3.a.


to expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action
shall become effective upon such approval; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NJTPA hereby supports the 2019
statewide targets for each of the safety performance measures set by NJDOT from the National
Performance Management Measures: Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP); Final
Rule (23 CFR 490); and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the NJTPA will program investments that
support the achievement of the performance targets in support of the NJDOT HSIP; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the New
Jersey Department of Transportation for submission to the Federal Highway Administration.



AttachmeniG.3.b

Summary of Action

Support for 2019 Safety Performance Measure Targets Set by the New Jersey Department
of Transportation in Collaboration with the NJTPA and Other Metropolitan Planning
Organizations in New Jersey

Action: Support for 2019 Safety Performance Measure targets set by NJDOT in
collaboration with NJTPA and other MPOs in New Jersey. The NJTPA will program
projects that will help the state meet these targets.

Backaground: The current Safety Performance Management rulemaking established the process
for State Departments of Transportation (DOTs) and Metropolitan Planning Organizations
(MPOs) to create and report their annual safety targets. It also established the process that the
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) will use to assess whether State DOTs have met or are
making significant progress toward meeting their safety targets.

FHWA established national performance measures for the purpose of carrying out the Highway
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) and for State DOTs and MPOs to use in assessing serious
injuries and fatalities.

The Safety Performance Management Final Rule establishes five performance measures as the
five-year rolling averages of:

Number of Fatalities

Rate of Fatalities per 100 million Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT)
Number of Serious Injuries

Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 million VMT

Number of Non-motorized Fatalities and Non-motorized Serious Injuries

O O0OO0O0O0

NJDOT set annual targets for the calendar year 2019 in its HSIP Annual Safety Report (ASR)
submitted to FHWA on August 31, 2018. The NJTPA is required to establish targets 180 days
after NJDOT, by either establishing a specific numeric target for an individual measure (or
multiple measures) specifically for the NJTPA region, or by agreeing to plan and program
projects that support the attainment of the state targets.

Targets are based on five-year averages, and include crashes on all public roads regardless of
functional classification or ownership.

NJDOT’s statewide safety targets for the five measures were established based on a collaborative
process with the New Jersey Division of Highway Traffic Safety and the three New Jersey
MPOs. The targets were set after analyzing past trends in crash data and are consistent with the
New Jersey Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) long-term goal of reducing serious injuries
and fatalities annually by an average of 2.5 percent. The 2017 baseline and 2019 targets are
shown in the following table.


beverly
Typewritten Text
Attachment G.3.b.

beverly
Typewritten Text


New Jersey Statewide 2017 Baseline and 2019 Targets for Safety Performance Measures

PERFORMANCE MEASURE

2017 BASELINE
(2013-2017 5 YEAR
ROLLING AVERAGE)

2019 TARGET
(2015-2019 5 YEAR
ROLLING AVERAGE)

Number of Fatalities 577.6 605.03
Fatality Rate 0.7611 0.780

Number of Serious Injuries 1092.52 1101.4*
Serious Injury Rate 1.43912 1.422
Number of Non-Motorized 379 11 393.95

Fatalities and Serious Injuries
! Based on projected VMT for 2017, as final data not yet available.
2 Based on projected Serious Injuries for 2017, as final data not yet available.
3 Based on an overall decrease of 1.1% in annual fatalities, from 626 in 2017 to 619 in 2019.
4 Based on an overall decrease of 10.8% in annual serious injuries, from a projected 1,181 in 2017 to 1,054 in 2019.
5 Based on an overall decrease of 4.4% in annual non-motorized fatalities and serious injuries, from a projected 405
in 2017 to 387 in 2019.

As noted in the footnotes above, while the targets for the 2015-2019 five-year averaging period
represent a slight increase over the 2013-2017 (baseline) averages for all measures except for the
rate of serious injuries, these targets still imply a reduction in the annual fatalities, serious
injuries, and non-motorized fatalities plus serious injuries in 2019 (compared to the 2017 annual
value). The target for the rate of serious injuries measure represents a reduction in both the five-
year average and the annual values.

The NJTPA’s action on targets (either specific numeric targets or support for the state targets) is
to be reported to NJDOT and must be available to FHWA, if requested. While the NJDOT can
face corrective actions for failing to meet or make substantial progress toward meeting their
statewide safety targets, no specific regulatory penalties apply to MPOs. (Each year that FHWA
determines a State has not met or made significant progress toward meeting its performance
targets, the State will be required to use obligation authority equal to the baseline year HSIP
apportionment only for safety projects. States must also develop a HSIP Implementation Plan,
documenting how they plan to meet their targets in the future.) The ramifications of not meeting
statewide targets were factored into the decision-making process for establishing the targets.

Justification for Action: The NJTPA is required to establish safety targets 180 days after they
are created by NJDOT, by either establishing a specific numeric target for an individual measure
(or multiple measures) specifically for the NJTPA region, or by agreeing to plan and program
projects that support the attainment of the state targets. The statewide safety targets were
developed in collaboration with NJTPA staff based on an analysis of historic crash data, and
reflect the long-term goal of the SHSP to reduce serious injuries and fatalities annually by an
average of 2.5 percent. Given these factors, it is appropriate for the NJTPA to support the New
Jersey statewide targets by agreeing to plan and program projects that help the state meet its
targets.

Staff Recommendation: Central Staff recommends approval of this action.



	111918 Board Meeting Agenda
	091018 Board Minutes
	101518 PPC-1 - PANYNJ Revisions to 4 Projects
	18028 Draft_Minor Amendments_Reso_PANYNJ_ECrevised
	18028 Minor Amendments Summary-PANYNJ_EC revised revised
	Supporting docs revised
	PA1410 Pending Revised
	PA1410 request revised revised
	PA1419 Pending
	PA1419 request revised revised
	Substation pending
	Substation request
	Concrete Seawall pending
	Concrete Sea Wal request


	101518 PEDC 2 PEP Resolution
	PEP Action Item SummaryBoardVersionEdit
	EditedFinalDraftPEP110518
	101518 PEDC-3 Safety Performance Targets
	101518  2019 Safety Targets Resolution
	101518 2019SafetyTargets_Summary_PEDC




